
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

2:00 P.M. WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2023 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Ed Lee, President; Bruce Kuebler, Vice President; Jack Curtis, Director; Laurie Lary, Director; Peggy Wiles, Director 

409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

The meeting will be held in person and via Zoom by phone & video conference. The meeting will be 
recorded. To attend/listen to the meeting please call Toll Free US 1 (888) 788-0099 or 1 (877) 853-5247 

Meeting ID: 822 1803 9151 Password: 964370 Zoom Link: Zoom Link 

AGENDA 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE 

2. OATH OF OFFICE – NEWLY APPOINTED OFFICIAL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (LIMIT 5 MIN / PER PERSON) 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. MINUTES AUGUST 16, 2023, 
B. PAYMENTS FOR AUGUST & CHECKS FOR AUGUST 
C. FINANCIALS FOR MAY & JUNE 

5. APPROVE CONSOLIDATION AGREEMENT WITH CASITAS MUTUAL WATER 
COMPANY 

6. RESOLUTION 2023-359: REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION FOR STATE REVOLVING 
FUND MONIES, 2023 WATER PROJECTS 

7. CALWARN ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT, MUTUAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT & 
RESOLUTION 

 
8. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

A. UPDATE ON THE UVRGA- BRUCE KUEBLER 
 

9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON WATER & DISTRICT STATUS 

10. FILLING GENERAL MANAGER POSITION 

11. OLD & NEW BUSINESS 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss the following items: 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Gov. Code § 54956.9) Name of case: Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper v. State Water Resources Control Board, et al., Los Angeles County Superior 
Court Case No. 19STCP01176 (formerly San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. 
CPF-14-513875) case update. 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION / Title: Assistant General 
Manager 

 
 
If you require special accommodation for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please notify our 
office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-3403 (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

Right to be heard: Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item of interest to the public, which is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. The request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board’s 
consideration of the item. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized 
by subdivision (b) of 54954.2 of the Government Code and except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond 
to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the Government 



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 1 of 82



 

 
DATE: September 20, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G. Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: OATH OF OFFICE: NEWLY APPOINTED OFFICIAL 

 
SUMMARY 
Director Nathan Rosser notified the Board of his intent to resign from his position on May 
11, 2023. His resignation became effective August 16, 2023.  
 
The upcoming board vacancy was advertised and a total of six applications were 
received. The best qualified candidates were interviewed in a public meeting on August 
16, 2023, by the Board of Directors and the Board unanimously appointed Dr. Laurel Lary 
to fill the remainder of Director Rosser’s term.  
 
Dr. Lary will need to run in the November 5, 2024, election cycle to serve a new 4-year 
term to continue serving on the Board.  
 
The Board Secretary will administer the Oath of Office during the Board meeting. 
 

Attachment 

 2A – Oath of Office 

Agenda Packet - Page 2 of 82



OATH OF OFFICE 
(California Government Code §1360) 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  }ss. 

COUNTY OF VENTURA  } 

As a Director for the VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

I, Laurel Lary, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California 

against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance 

to the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of 

California; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or 

purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon 

which I am about to enter.   

_____________________________________ 

Laurel Lary    

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day of September 2023. 

By: ______________________________________ 

  Bert J. Rapp, General Manager/Secretary    

ATTACHMENT 2A

Agenda Packet - Page 3 of 82



 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING AUGUST 16, 2023 

 
The director’s present were: Jack Curtis, Bruce Kuebler, Nathan Rosser and Peggy Wiles. Director Ed Lee 
arrived at 2:28 pm. Also present were Attorney Stuart Nielson, Assistant General Manager Alma Quezada, 
and Office Manager Emily Arnbrister. Public Present for Interviews: Brian Burg, Laurel Lary, and Kurt 
Schultzel. Other public present: Marbe Manzano.  
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - Vice President Bruce Kuebler called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. 

Flag salute led by Bruce Kuebler. 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA) – None. 
3. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. MINUTES JULY 19, 2023 
B. PAYMENTS & CHECKS FOR JULY 2023 

 
Peggy Wiles moved for approval of the consent agenda with changes to minutes reflecting her voting 
against the service line, seconded by Nathan Rosser and the motion carried 3-0, abstained Jack Curtis. 
 
Peggy Wiles made a motion to skip item #4 and move on to other agenda items while waiting for 
attendees to arrive, seconded by Jack Curtis. The motion carried 4-0. 
 
Director Ed Lee arrived. 

 
4. BOARD VACANCY INTERVIEW OF CANDIDATES:  Three select candidates were interviewed; Brian 

Burg, Laurel Lary, and Kurt Schultzel. Each candidate was asked the same set of questions with 
individual followup questions as needed. There was general board discussion regarding the candidates. 
Bruce Kuebler recommended the appointment of Laurel Lary, seconded by Peggy Wiles. The motion 
carried 5-0.  

 
5. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED & UPDATE ON THE UPPER VENTURA RIVER 

GROUNDWATER AGENCY (UVRGA) – Bruce Kuebler reported the UVRGA meeting was canceled.  
 

6. WATER & DISTRICT UPDATE: The static aquifer level at Well #2 on August 1, 2023, was at elevation 
546.7 feet and decreased 2.4 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is currently 26.0 feet above 
the 35-year average for August 1st. Well #1 is pumping 1,089 GPM, up 11 GPM from last month. Well 
#7 is pumping 862 GPM, up 23 GPM from last month. Well #2, #3, #4 & #6 were offline in July. 
Supplemental Casitas water was not purchased. Sales dollars billed on July 31, 2023, amounted to 
$224,763, under budget by $32,512 for July. Water sold in July 2023 amounted to 29,639 HCF, a 
decrease of 52.5% below the 62,374 HCF sold in July 2013. On August 1, 2023, Lake Casitas level 
was at 73.2% of capacity at an elevation of 541.00 feet. The lake has decreased 0.8% since last month.  
 

7. OLD & NEW BUSINESS: None. 
 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION – No executive session was held. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:16 pm. 
 
Attested: 

_____________________________     
Bert J. Rapp, Secretary       

Agenda Packet - Page 4 of 82



Date Vendor Description Amount

8/7/23 SCE Electric 13,690.95$      

8/7/23 WEX Fuel 1,635.78$         

8/7/23 ATT Mobile Phones 433.37$  

8/8/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 41.67$  

8/10/23 MECHANICS BANK Analysis Charges 933.91$  

8/15/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 12,576.55$      

8/15/23 CALPERS UAL-Classic 3,753.25$         

8/15/23 CALPERS Classic 2,936.50$         

8/15/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,502.57$         

8/15/23 EDD State Tax Deposit 2,423.42$         

8/15/23 CALPERS GASB 68 700.00$  

8/15/23 TIAA Ricoh Printer 175.64$  

8/15/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$  

8/15/23 VANCO Bank Check Elimination 81.85$  

8/15/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 10.00$  

8/16/23 CALPERS 457 3,575.00$         

8/17/23 CHASE Credit Card Payment 4,043.81$         

8/18/23 ACWA Health Insurance 11,586.48$      

8/18/23 IVR Robocalls 74.90$  

8/22/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 3,166.62$         

8/24/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 75.00$  

8/25/23 MATILIJA WATER Office Water 24.24$  

8/29/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 10.00$  

Total Online A/P Payments 64,548.51$      

Check Number Vendor Reason Amount

None

Online A/P Payment Transactions - August 2023

Voided Checks

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 5 of 82



Page: 19/15/23 Ventura River Water District
4:46:11 AM

Check Dates: 8/1/2023 to 8/31/2023

AP Check Register (Current by Bank)

Status*Date AmountVendor ID Payee NameCheck No.

BANK ID:  RBOGEN - OPERATING ACCOUNT 10005

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES17835 P08/15/23 $265.9310197

BADGER METER17836 P08/15/23 $29,601.0010094

BENNER AND CARPENTER, INC17837 P08/15/23 $2,232.5010140

FGL, INC.17838 P08/15/23 $174.001393

HERUM CRABTREE SUNTAG17839 P08/15/23 $492.6810134

JO O'CONNELL17840 P08/15/23 $594.70JOOCON

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17841 P08/15/23 $40.541950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17842 P08/15/23 $148.002025

NELSON COMIS KETTLE & KINNEY,17843 P08/15/23 $3,705.0010204

OJAI VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT17844 P08/15/23 $118.242400

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE17845 P08/15/23 $11,732.5010163

BADGER METER17846 P08/31/23 $1,045.5910094

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST17847 P08/31/23 $11,625.22750

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS17848 P08/31/23 $4,463.001000

DIAL SECURITY17849 P08/31/23 $325.001268

EDDY PADILLA17850 P08/31/23 $138.72EPADIL

FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.17851 P08/31/23 $312.101390

FGL, INC.17852 P08/31/23 $660.001393

GARRY BARKER17853 P08/31/23 $206.67BARKER

KELLY CLEANING & SUPPLIES17854 P08/31/23 $290.001730

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17855 P08/31/23 $129.741950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17856 P08/31/23 $1,293.052025

OILFIELD ELECTRIC & MOTOR17857 P08/31/23 $6,468.002200

OJAI AUTO SUPPLY LLC17858 P08/31/23 $24.852226

OJAI TRUE VALUE17859 P08/31/23 $16.7210127

SHRED-IT17860 P08/31/23 $48.273080

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT17861 P08/31/23 $109.463550

ZWORLD GIS, LLC17862 P08/31/23 $1,950.0010123

BANK RBOGEN REGISTER TOTAL: $78,211.48

GRAND TOTAL : $78,211.48

* Check Status Types: "P" - Printed  ; "M" - Manual ; "V" - Void ( Void Date ); "A" - Application; "E" - EFT
** Denotes broken check sequence.

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 6 of 82



Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

For the period(s) of 5/1/2023 through 5/31/2023

9/15/23
4:28:10 AM

 Revenues

WATER SALES $149,761.50 %93.1

SERVICE INSTALLATION 5,550.00 3.4

DELINQUENT FEES 1,830.00 1.1

CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES 3,760.00 2.3

$160,901.50Total Revenues %100.0

 Operating Expenses

WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES $10,176.76 %6.3

UVRGA PUMP FEE 10,705.33 6.7

SALARIES 54,638.21 34.0

PTO & SICK 7,859.72 4.9

SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE 4,998.62 3.1

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 9,311.73 5.8

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 11,586.48 7.2

WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE 1,041.51 0.6

LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,825.25 4.2

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION 680.00 0.4

CONTRACT LABOR 129.40 0.1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft) 38,172.89 23.7

FUEL 1,577.23 1.0

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 924.75 0.6

OFFICE MAINTENANCE 4,002.79 2.5

FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,293.02 1.4

METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE 2,600.63 1.6

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 35.14 0.0

WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 12,918.16 8.0

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL 4,311.85 2.7

$184,789.47Total Operating Expenses %114.8

 General & Administrative Expenses

UTILITIES 8,639.21 5.4

TELEPHONE & INTERNET 1,072.82 0.7

LAFCO FEES 131.67 0.1

BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS 851.61 0.5

MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,850.08 1.1

PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV 786.67 0.5

ELECTIONS 3,961.06 2.5

DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION 253.33 0.2

SECURITY 289.00 0.2

POSTAGE 790.87 0.5

OFFICE SUPPLIES 931.71 0.6

VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES 1,095.21 0.7

CONSERVATION 20,191.25 12.5

$40,844.49Total General & Administrative Expenses %25.4

Total Expenses %140.2$225,633.96

)$(64,732.46 %)(40.2Income (Loss) from Operations

 Other Income (Expense)

PROPERTY TAXES 235.91 0.1

INTEREST INCOME 0.88 0.0

OTHER REVENUE 1,208.26 0.8

$1,445.05Total Other Income (Expense) %0.9

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes %)(39.3)$(63,287.41

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 7 of 82



Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

For the period(s) of 5/1/2023 through 5/31/2023

9/15/23
4:28:10 AM

Net Income (Loss) %)(39.3)$(63,287.41

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 8 of 82



V
e
n

tu
ra

 R
iv

e
r 

W
a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

In
c
o

m
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

(O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 A
c
tu

a
l 
C

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
)

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

 5
/1

/2
0

2
3

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

Y
e
a
r 

T
o

 D
a
te

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

%
%

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

 R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

$
1
4
9
,7

6
1
.5

0
$
2
2
1
,2

5
1
.0

0
)

$
(7

1
,4

8
9
.5

0
%)

(3
2
.3

$
1
,8

5
1
,9

4
8
.5

7
$
2
,3

9
9
,3

7
7
.0

0
)

$
(5

4
7
,4

2
8
.4

3
%)

(2
2
.8

W
A

T
E

R
 S

A
L
E

S

5
,5

5
0
.0

0
8
3
.3

3
5
,4

6
6
.6

7
6
5
6
0
.3

9
,2

1
8
.5

3
9
1
6
.6

3
8
,3

0
1
.9

0
9
0
5
.7

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
N

S
T
A

L
L
A

T
IO

N

1
,8

3
0
.0

0
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
4
3
0
.0

0
3
0
.7

2
0
,5

6
5
.0

0
1
5
,4

0
0
.0

0
5
,1

6
5
.0

0
3
3
.5

D
E

L
IN

Q
U

E
N

T
 F

E
E

S

3
,7

6
0
.0

0
2
,6

6
6
.6

7
1
,0

9
3
.3

3
4
1
.0

9
4
,5

4
4
.0

0
2
9
,3

3
3
.3

7
6
5
,2

1
0
.6

3
2
2
2
.3

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 P

E
N

A
LT

Y
 F

E
E

S

%)
(1

9
.2

%)
(2

8
.6

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

$
2
2
5
,4

0
1
.0

0
)

$
(4

6
8
,7

5
0
.9

0
$
2
,4

4
5
,0

2
7
.0

0
$
1
,9

7
6
,2

7
6
.1

0
)

$
(6

4
,4

9
9
.5

0
$
1
6
0
,9

0
1
.5

0

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

1
0
,1

7
6
.7

6
1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

2
3
.2

4
1
5
.2

1
0
6
,5

7
4
.5

6
1
3
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,4

2
5
.4

4
1
9
.3

W
A

T
E

R
 P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
S

 &
 C

A
S

IT
A

S
 B

A
S

E
 F

E
E

S

1
0
,7

0
5
.3

3
1
0
,7

0
5
.3

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

11
7
,7

5
8
.6

3
11

7
,7

5
8
.6

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

U
V

R
G

A
 P

U
M

P
 F

E
E

5
4
,6

3
8
.2

1
6
4
,7

0
5
.9

2
1
0
,0

6
7
.7

1
1
5
.6

6
7
1
,1

3
1
.9

4
7
11

,7
6
5
.1

2
4
0
,6

3
3
.1

8
5
.7

S
A

L
A

R
IE

S

7
,8

5
9
.7

2
6
,4

7
0
.5

8
)

(1
,3

8
9
.1

4
)

(2
1
.5

7
5
,0

9
1
.3

3
7
1
,1

7
6
.3

8
)

(3
,9

1
4
.9

5
)

(5
.5

P
T

O
 &

 S
IC

K

4
,9

9
8
.6

2
4
,9

5
0
.0

0
)

(4
8
.6

2
)

(1
.0

5
2
,0

4
7
.3

4
5
4
,4

5
0
.0

0
2
,4

0
2
.6

6
4
.4

S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 &
 M

E
D

IC
A

R
E

0
.0

0
8
8
.3

3
8
8
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

1
,0

5
6
.9

5
9
7
1
.6

3
)

(8
5
.3

2
)

(8
.8

S
T
A

T
E

 P
A

Y
R

O
L
L
 T

A
X

E
S

 (
S

U
I,

 E
T

T
)

9
,3

11
.7

3
9
,9

1
8
.5

8
6
0
6
.8

5
6
.1

9
9
,4

7
8
.4

7
1
0
9
,1

0
4
.3

8
9
,6

2
5
.9

1
8
.8

P
U

B
L
IC

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
S

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 S

Y
S

T
E

M

11
,5

8
6
.4

8
1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
3
.5

2
3
.4

1
2
7
,7

0
2
.4

3
1
3
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
,2

9
7
.5

7
3
.3

G
R

O
U

P
 H

E
A

LT
H

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

1
,0

4
1
.5

1
2
,3

3
3
.3

3
1
,2

9
1
.8

2
5
5
.4

1
0
,6

4
8
.0

9
2
5
,6

6
6
.6

3
1
5
,0

1
8
.5

4
5
8
.5

W
O

R
K

E
R

'S
 C

O
M

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

6
,8

2
5
.2

5
5
,9

8
1
.9

2
)

(8
4
3
.3

3
)

(1
4
.1

6
2
,5

9
5
.4

7
6
5
,8

0
1
.1

2
3
,2

0
5
.6

5
4
.9

L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

6
8
0
.0

0
1
,0

8
3
.3

3
4
0
3
.3

3
3
7
.2

1
0
,0

6
0
.0

0
11

,9
1
6
.6

3
1
,8

5
6
.6

3
1
5
.6

B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 C

O
M

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

1
2
9
.4

0
1
0
,9

5
3
.7

5
1
0
,8

2
4
.3

5
9
8
.8

9
8
,2

8
4
.3

8
1
2
0
,4

9
1
.2

5
2
2
,2

0
6
.8

7
1
8
.4

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 L
A

B
O

R

3
8
,1

7
2
.8

9
5
,9

5
8
.3

3
)

(3
2
,2

1
4
.5

6
)

(5
4
0
.7

9
2
,1

7
2
.6

5
6
5
,5

4
1
.6

3
)

(2
6
,6

3
1
.0

2
)

(4
0
.6

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

(A
u
d
it
, 

E
n
g
r,

D
ra

ft
)

1
,5

7
7
.2

3
1
,8

0
0
.0

0
2
2
2
.7

7
1
2
.4

1
5
,9

7
9
.2

0
1
9
,8

0
0
.0

0
3
,8

2
0
.8

0
1
9
.3

F
U

E
L

9
2
4
.7

5
8
3
3
.3

3
)

(9
1
.4

2
)

(1
1
.0

4
,5

1
4
.9

4
9
,1

6
6
.6

3
4
,6

5
1
.6

9
5
0
.7

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

4
,0

0
2
.7

9
5
,6

5
0
.0

0
1
,6

4
7
.2

1
2
9
.2

6
4
,3

8
8
.9

1
6
2
,1

5
0
.0

0
)

(2
,2

3
8
.9

1
)

(3
.6

O
F

F
IC

E
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

2
,2

9
3
.0

2
4
,5

8
3
.3

3
2
,2

9
0
.3

1
5
0
.0

4
3
,8

9
0
.7

7
5
0
,4

1
6
.6

3
6
,5

2
5
.8

6
1
2
.9

F
IE

L
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

2
,6

0
0
.6

3
8
,1

6
5
.5

8
5
,5

6
4
.9

5
6
8
.2

9
1
,8

1
2
.0

7
8
9
,8

2
1
.3

8
)

(1
,9

9
0
.6

9
)

(2
.2

M
E

T
E

R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 &
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

3
5
.1

4
4
1
6
.6

7
3
8
1
.5

3
9
1
.6

3
3
3
.8

0
4
,5

8
3
.3

7
4
,2

4
9
.5

7
9
2
.7

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 R
E

N
T
A

L

1
2
,9

1
8
.1

6
7
,9

1
6
.6

7
)

(5
,0

0
1
.4

9
)

(6
3
.2

8
2
,0

4
4
.5

6
8
7
,0

8
3
.3

7
5
,0

3
8
.8

1
5
.8

W
A

T
E

R
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

4
,3

11
.8

5
1
,4

1
6
.6

7
)

(2
,8

9
5
.1

8
)

(2
0
4
.4

1
2
,7

6
1
.2

0
1
5
,5

8
3
.3

7
2
,8

2
2
.1

7
1
8
.1

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 L
E

G
A

L
 C

O
U

N
S

E
L

0
.0

0
2
9
,1

6
6
.6

7
2
9
,1

6
6
.6

7
1
0
0
.0

0
.0

0
3
2
0
,8

3
3
.3

7
3
2
0
,8

3
3
.3

7
1
0
0
.0

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

%
1
9
.2

%
1
0
.8

T
o

ta
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$
2
0
7
,0

9
8
.3

2
$
4
3
7
,7

5
3
.8

3
$
2
,2

7
8
,0

8
1
.5

2
$
1
,8

4
0
,3

2
7
.6

9
$
2
2
,3

0
8
.8

5
$
1
8
4
,7

8
9
.4

7

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
&

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

8
,6

3
9
.2

1
1
2
,0

8
3
.3

3
3
,4

4
4
.1

2
2
8
.5

1
0
8
,9

0
6
.6

5
1
3
2
,9

1
6
.6

3
2
4
,0

0
9
.9

8
1
8
.1

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
,0

7
2
.8

2
1
,1

9
1
.6

7
11

8
.8

5
1
0
.0

1
0
,4

6
4
.9

7
1
3
,1

0
8
.3

7
2
,6

4
3
.4

0
2
0
.2

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
 &

 I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

1
3
1
.6

7
1
3
4
.6

7
3
.0

0
2
.2

1
,4

4
8
.3

7
1
,4

8
1
.3

7
3
3
.0

0
2
.2

L
A

F
C

O
 F

E
E

S

8
5
1
.6

1
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
3
4
8
.3

9
2
9
.0

8
,9

1
0
.0

4
1
3
,2

0
0
.0

0
4
,2

8
9
.9

6
3
2
.5

B
A

N
K

 F
E

E
S

 A
N

D
 M

IS
C

E
L
L
A

N
E

O
U

S

1
,8

5
0
.0

8
2
,0

8
3
.3

3
2
3
3
.2

5
11

.2
1
9
,8

7
4
.9

7
2
2
,9

1
6
.6

3
3
,0

4
1
.6

6
1
3
.3

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
,D

U
E

S
,S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
S

7
8
6
.6

7
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
4
1
3
.3

3
3
4
.4

4
,4

4
2
.9

8
1
3
,2

0
0
.0

0
8
,7

5
7
.0

2
6
6
.3

P
U

B
L
IC

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

/E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

/C
O

N
S

E
R

V

0
.0

0
3
3
3
.3

3
3
3
3
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

3
,1

5
6
.6

3
3
,6

6
6
.6

3
5
1
0
.0

0
1
3
.9

L
E

G
A

L
 N

O
T

IC
E

S
 &

 N
E

W
S

L
E

T
T

E
R

S

3
,9

6
1
.0

6
3
4
1
.6

7
)

(3
,6

1
9
.3

9
)

(1
0
5
9
.3

3
,9

6
1
.0

6
3
,7

5
8
.3

7
)

(2
0
2
.6

9
)

(5
.4

E
L
E

C
T

IO
N

S

2
5
3
.3

3
4
1
6
.6

7
1
6
3
.3

4
3
9
.2

5
3
7
.1

5
4
,5

8
3
.3

7
4
,0

4
6
.2

2
8
8
.3

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

 T
R

A
V

E
L
/E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

2
8
9
.0

0
4
1
6
.6

7
1
2
7
.6

7
3
0
.6

3
,5

6
8
.5

0
4
,5

8
3
.3

7
1
,0

1
4
.8

7
2
2
.1

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 9 of 82



V
e
n

tu
ra

 R
iv

e
r 

W
a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

In
c
o

m
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

(O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 A
c
tu

a
l 
C

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
)

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

 5
/1

/2
0

2
3

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

Y
e
a
r 

T
o

 D
a
te

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

%
%

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

7
9
0
.8

7
1
,0

8
3
.3

3
2
9
2
.4

6
2
7
.0

9
,5

0
0
.0

4
11

,9
1
6
.6

3
2
,4

1
6
.5

9
2
0
.3

P
O

S
T
A

G
E

9
3
1
.7

1
1
,4

1
6
.6

7
4
8
4
.9

6
3
4
.2

1
4
,9

4
8
.9

3
1
5
,5

8
3
.3

7
6
3
4
.4

4
4
.1

O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
L
IE

S

1
,0

9
5
.2

1
4
,5

8
3
.3

3
3
,4

8
8
.1

2
7
6
.1

6
,1

8
9
.5

3
5
0
,4

1
6
.6

3
4
4
,2

2
7
.1

0
8
7
.7

V
E

N
T

U
R

A
 R

IV
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

S
H

E
D

 I
S

S
U

E
S

0
.0

0
3
3
3
.3

3
3
3
3
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

0
.0

0
3
,6

6
6
.6

3
3
,6

6
6
.6

3
1
0
0
.0

B
A

D
 D

E
B

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

2
0
,1

9
1
.2

5
3
,3

3
3
.3

3
)

(1
6
,8

5
7
.9

2
)

(5
0
5
.7

3
9
,0

9
8
.6

9
3
6
,6

6
6
.6

3
)

(2
,4

3
2
.0

6
)

(6
.6

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N

%
2
9
.1

%)
(3

5
.5

T
o

ta
l 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
&

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$
3
0
,1

5
1
.3

3
$
9
6
,6

5
6
.1

2
$
3
3
1
,6

6
4
.6

3
$
2
3
5
,0

0
8
.5

1
)

$
(1

0
,6

9
3
.1

6
$
4
0
,8

4
4
.4

9

%
2
0
.5

T
o

ta
l 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$
2
2
5
,6

3
3
.9

6
$
1
1
,6

1
5
.6

9
%

4
.9

$
2
3
7
,2

4
9
.6

5
$
2
,0

7
5
,3

3
6
.2

0
$
2
,6

0
9
,7

4
6
.1

5
$
5
3
4
,4

0
9
.9

5

In
c
o

m
e
 (

L
o

s
s
) 

fr
o

m
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

)
$
(6

4
,7

3
2
.4

6
)

$
(1

1
,8

4
8
.6

5
)

$
(5

2
,8

8
3
.8

1
%)

(4
4
6
.3

%
3
9
.9

$
6
5
,6

5
9
.0

5
)

$
(1

6
4
,7

1
9
.1

5
)

$
(9

9
,0

6
0
.1

0

 O
th

e
r 

In
c
o

m
e
 (

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
)

$
2
3
5
.9

1
$
4
,1

6
6
.6

7
)

$
(3

,9
3
0
.7

6
%)

(9
4
.3

$
5
3
,0

2
5
.5

6
$
4
5
,8

3
3
.3

7
$
7
,1

9
2
.1

9
%

1
5
.7

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
E

S

0
.8

8
5
0
0
.0

0
)

(4
9
9
.1

2
)

(9
9
.8

1
3
,9

1
0
.4

7
5
,5

0
0
.0

0
8
,4

1
0
.4

7
1
5
2
.9

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E

1
,2

0
8
.2

6
4
1
6
.6

7
7
9
1
.5

9
1
9
0
.0

3
5
,8

4
2
.1

3
4
,5

8
3
.3

7
3
1
,2

5
8
.7

6
6
8
2
.0

O
T

H
E

R
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

0
.0

0
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(7
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(1
0
0
.0

0
.0

0
8
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(8
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(1
0
0
.0

S
R

F
 L

O
A

N
 P

R
O

C
E

E
D

S

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

2
5
,2

9
4
.5

9
0
.0

0
2
5
,2

9
4
.5

9
0
.0

G
R

A
N

T
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

%)
(7

.5
%)

(8
8
.5

T
o

ta
l 

O
th

e
r 

In
c
o

m
e
 (

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
)

$
1
2
,5

8
3
.3

4
)

$
(1

0
,3

4
3
.9

9
$
1
3
8
,4

1
6
.7

4
$
1
2
8
,0

7
2
.7

5
)

$
(1

1
,1

3
8
.2

9
$
1
,4

4
5
.0

5

%
2
1
0
.3

In
c
o

m
e
 B

e
fo

re
 T

a
x
e
s

)
$
(6

3
,2

8
7
.4

1
)

$
(6

4
,0

2
2
.1

0
%)

(8
7
1
4
.2

$
7
3
4
.6

9
$
2
9
,0

1
2
.6

5
)

$
(2

6
,3

0
2
.4

1
$
5
5
,3

1
5
.0

6

)
$
(6

3
,2

8
7
.4

1
N

e
t 

In
c
o
m

e
 (

L
o
s
s
)

)
$
(6

4
,0

2
2
.1

0
%)

(8
7
1
4
.2

)
$
(2

6
,3

0
2
.4

1
$
5
5
,3

1
5
.0

6
$
2
9
,0

1
2
.6

5
%

2
1
0
.3

$
7
3
4
.6

9

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 10 of 82



As of 5/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District9/15/23
4:34:34 AM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $729,155.51

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 671,347.56

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 12,108.74

RABO6073 7,194.02

PRO-EQUITIES 902,187.19

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 162,768.00

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 30,226.00

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 308.00

PREPAID WEB SERVICES 158.34

PREPAID INSURANCE 98,978.16

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 16,987.67

PREPAID OTHER 26,723.84

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $2,821,686.97

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,810,360.66

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 79,791.94

TRUCKS 278,657.71

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 299,988.35

BUILDINGS 1,810,567.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 37,541.85

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,905,339.00

COMPUTERS 1,810.14

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 305,662.80

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 66,423.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 399,707.35

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 100,146.69

REPLACE 2008 F-250 TRUCK 51,768.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(5,127,624.42

UPGRADE SCADA RADIOS 34,996.81

CASITAS SPRINGS EMERGENCY FIRE FLOW PUMP 11,127.00

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 13,797.00

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 8,233,805.31

Total Assets $11,055,492.28
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $36,199.66

PTO PAYABLE 152,586.12

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 11 of 82



As of 5/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District9/15/23
4:34:34 AM

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 4,571.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,295.03

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

FLIEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT )(369.78

DEPENDENT CARE 2,499.90

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $670,188.71

Total Liabilities $670,188.71
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,569,865.92

Current Year Profit/Loss A 29,012.65

 

Total Equity 10,385,303.57A

Total Liabilities and Equity $11,055,492.28

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 12 of 82



W
a

te
r 

S
y

s
te

m
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/(

O
v

e
r)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
/S

ta
tu

s

1
3

0
1

4
W

e
ll 

#
6

 (
W

e
ll 

#
5

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t)

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
 

R
e

ta
in

in
g
 w

a
ll,

 g
ra

v
e

l p
a

d
 (

P
o

s
tp

o
n
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9

)
1

3
0

4
0

M
ix

in
g
 V

a
lv

e
 S

o
u
th

 A
lto

 T
a

n
k

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
 

M
o

d
if
ic

a
tio

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 e
x
is

tin
g
 v

a
lv

e
s
 t
h
e

n
 d

o
 S

o
u
th

 T
a

n
k 

in
 2

0
2

2
.

1
3

0
7

0
S

a
n
ta

 A
n
a

 B
lv

d
 F

ir
e

 F
lo

w
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

4
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

1
9

.5
0

$
  

  
4

4
,9

8
0

.5
0

$
  

  
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 in

 2
0

2
4

1
3

0
5

7
R

e
-p

lu
m

b
 E

n
c
in

o
 &

 T
h
o

m
a

s
 P

R
V

 V
a

u
lts

 -
 D

e
s
ig

n
1

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
1

,0
7

2
.5

0
$

  
  

1
0

,9
2

7
.5

0
$

  
  
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 in

 2
0

2
4

1
3

0
6

1
W

e
ll 

#
2

 &
 3

 P
u
m

p
 &

 P
a

n
n
e

l R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

3
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
 

2
,3

7
0

.0
0

$
  

  
3

2
2

,6
3

0
.0

0
$

  
  
 

P
u
m

p
 &

 P
a

n
e

l R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

1
3

1
0

4
U

p
g
ra

d
e

 S
C

A
D

A
 R

a
d

io
s

3
5

,0
1

2
.0

0
$

  
  

3
4

,9
9

6
.8

1
$

  
  

1
5

.1
9

$
  

  
R

e
p
la

c
e

 S
C

A
D

A
 r

a
d

io
s
 &

 a
n
te

n
n
a

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

lo
c
a

te
 a

n
te

n
n
a

s
1

3
1

0
5

C
a

s
ita

s
 S

p
ri
n
g
s
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y 

F
ir
e

 F
lo

w
 P

u
m

p
2

5
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

1
1

,1
2

7
.0

0
$

  
  

2
3

8
,8

7
3

.0
0

$
  

  
 

N
e

e
d

e
d

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

d
ro

p
p
in

g
 L

a
ke

 C
a

s
ita

s
 le

v
e

ls
1

3
0

9
4

T
ic

o
 M

u
tu

a
l A

n
n
e

x
a

tio
n
 P

ro
je

c
t

9
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

2
5

,8
1

9
.3

0
$

  
  

6
4

,1
8

0
.7

0
$

  
  
 

L
A

F
C

o
 A

p
p
lic

a
tio

n
, 
D

e
s
ig

n
 E

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n
g
, 
S

R
F

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

tio
n

1
3

0
9

8
S

R
F

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 ,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l, 
E

n
g
r,

 E
a

s
e

m
ts

5
2

3
,0

0
0

$
  

  
1

8
2

,2
5

2
.8

1
$

  
  
 

3
4

0
,7

4
7

.1
9

$
  

  
 

A
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 P
h
o

e
n
ix

 =
 $

6
5

8
,0

0
0

 (
1

3
0

9
8

 &
 1

3
0

9
9

),
 P

o
th

o
lin

g
 &

 E
a

s
e

m
e

n
ts

1
3

0
9

9
S

R
F

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 P

o
th

o
lin

g
1

2
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

7
0

,3
0

8
.5

8
$

  
  

4
9

,6
9

1
.4

2
$

  
  
 

2
0

2
3

 P
o

th
o

lin
g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
(b

u
d

g
e

t 
tr

a
n
s
fe

r 
#

1
)

1
3

1
0

0
S

R
F

 S
o

la
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 ,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l, 
E

n
g
r

8
1

,0
0

0
$

  
  

5
1

,7
1

4
.8

9
$

  
  

2
9

,2
8

5
.1

1
$

  
  
 

A
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 P
h
o

e
n
ix

 =
 $

1
1

4
,2

2
7

T
o

ta
l

1
,5

2
1

,0
1

2
$

  
  

3
7

9
,6

8
1

$
  

  
1

,1
4

1
,3

3
1

$
  

  
 

A
u

to
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/O

v
e

r
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

/S
ta

tu
s

1
3

1
0

1
R

e
p
la

c
e

 2
0

0
8

 F
-2

5
0

 W
o

rk
tr

u
c
k

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

5
1

,7
6

8
.0

5
$

  
  

3
,2

3
1

.9
5

$
  

  
 

R
e

p
la

c
e

 2
0

0
8

 F
o

rd
 F

-2
5

0
 w

o
rk

 t
ru

c
k

S
h

o
p

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/O

v
e

r
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

/S
ta

tu
s

1
3

0
9

2
V

a
lv

e
 T

u
rn

 M
a

c
h
in

e
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
 G

P
S

 f
o

r 
G

IS
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
 

T
h
is

 u
p
g
ra

d
e

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e

 lo
c
a

tio
n
 o

f 
v
a

lv
e

s
 a

s
 t
h
e

y 
a

re
 e

x
e

rs
iz

e
d

 a
n
d

 im
p
o

rt
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 t
h
e

 G
IS

 s
ys

te
m

.
O

ff
ic

e
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/O

v
e

r
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

/S
ta

tu
s

1
3

0
5

4
C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
U

p
g
ra

d
e

s
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

1
,8

1
0

.1
4

$
  

  
6

,1
8

9
.8

6
$

  
  
 

S
c
a

n
n
e

r 
fo

r 
fr

o
n
t 
o

ff
ic

e
, 
a

g
m

 c
o

m
p
u
te

r,
 s

m
a

ll 
d

e
s
kt

o
p
 p

ri
n
te

r

S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
,5

8
8

,5
1

2
.0

0
$

  
 

4
3

3
,2

5
9

.5
8

$
  

  
 

1
,1

5
5

,2
5

2
.4

2
$

  
  
 

V
E

N
T

U
R

A
 R

IV
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
ta

tu
s

 o
f 

C
a

p
it

a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 -

 F
Y

E
 2

0
2

3

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 13 of 82



Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

For the period(s) of 6/1/2023 through 6/30/2023

9/15/23
4:28:31 AM

 Revenues

WATER SALES $188,932.09 %95.3

SERVICE INSTALLATION 1,694.70 0.9

DELINQUENT FEES 1,200.00 0.6

CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES 6,505.00 3.3

$198,331.79Total Revenues %100.0

 Operating Expenses

WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES $21,193.18 %10.7

UVRGA PUMP FEE 10,705.33 5.4

SALARIES 60,547.10 30.5

PTO & SICK 17,269.13 8.7

SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE 4,973.79 2.5

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 9,242.99 4.7

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 11,586.48 5.8

WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE 1,041.51 0.5

LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,825.25 3.4

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION 640.00 0.3

CONTRACT LABOR 129.40 0.1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft) 1,666.64 0.8

FUEL 2,928.87 1.5

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,915.28 1.0

OFFICE MAINTENANCE 4,350.35 2.2

FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110.76 0.1

METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE 6,708.64 3.4

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 35.14 0.0

WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 16,448.95 8.3

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL 9,247.50 4.7

$187,566.29Total Operating Expenses %94.6

 General & Administrative Expenses

UTILITIES 21,208.77 10.7

TELEPHONE & INTERNET 1,467.24 0.7

LAFCO FEES 131.67 0.1

BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS 951.15 0.5

MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,784.00 0.9

PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV 6,431.50 3.2

DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION 90.83 0.0

SECURITY 289.00 0.1

POSTAGE 870.00 0.4

OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,497.59 1.3

VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES 172.67 0.1

CONSERVATION 43,967.50 22.2

$79,861.92Total General & Administrative Expenses %40.3

Total Expenses %134.8$267,428.21

)$(69,096.42 %)(34.8Income (Loss) from Operations

 Other Income (Expense)

PROPERTY TAXES 13,654.22 6.9

INTEREST INCOME 5,632.42 2.8

OTHER REVENUE 2,943.94 1.5

$22,230.58Total Other Income (Expense) %11.2

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes %)(23.6)$(46,865.84

Net Income (Loss) %)(23.6)$(46,865.84

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 14 of 82



V
e
n

tu
ra

 R
iv

e
r 

W
a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

In
c
o

m
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

(O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 A
c
tu

a
l 
C

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
)

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

 6
/1

/2
0

2
3

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 6
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

Y
e
a
r 

T
o

 D
a
te

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

%
%

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

 R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

$
1
8
8
,9

3
2
.0

9
$
2
6
0
,6

2
3
.0

0
)

$
(7

1
,6

9
0
.9

1
%)

(2
7
.5

$
2
,0

4
0
,8

8
0
.6

6
$
2
,6

6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

$
(6

1
9
,1

1
9
.3

4
%)

(2
3
.3

W
A

T
E

R
 S

A
L
E

S

1
,6

9
4
.7

0
8
3
.3

7
1
,6

11
.3

3
1
9
3
2
.7

1
0
,9

1
3
.2

3
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
,9

1
3
.2

3
9
9
1
.3

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
N

S
T
A

L
L
A

T
IO

N

1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
)

(2
0
0
.0

0
)

(1
4
.3

2
1
,7

6
5
.0

0
1
6
,8

0
0
.0

0
4
,9

6
5
.0

0
2
9
.6

D
E

L
IN

Q
U

E
N

T
 F

E
E

S

6
,5

0
5
.0

0
2
,6

6
6
.6

3
3
,8

3
8
.3

7
1
4
3
.9

1
0
1
,0

4
9
.0

0
3
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
9
,0

4
9
.0

0
2
1
5
.8

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 P

E
N

A
LT

Y
 F

E
E

S

%)
(1

9
.8

%)
(2

5
.1

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

$
2
6
4
,7

7
3
.0

0
)

$
(5

3
5
,1

9
2
.1

1
$
2
,7

0
9
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
2
,1

7
4
,6

0
7
.8

9
)

$
(6

6
,4

4
1
.2

1
$
1
9
8
,3

3
1
.7

9

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

2
1
,1

9
3
.1

8
1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(9
,1

9
3
.1

8
)

(7
6
.6

1
2
7
,7

6
7
.7

4
1
4
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
6
,2

3
2
.2

6
11

.3
W

A
T

E
R

 P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

S
 &

 C
A

S
IT

A
S

 B
A

S
E

 F
E

E
S

1
0
,7

0
5
.3

3
1
0
,7

0
5
.3

7
0
.0

4
0
.0

1
2
8
,4

6
3
.9

6
1
2
8
,4

6
4
.0

0
0
.0

4
0
.0

U
V

R
G

A
 P

U
M

P
 F

E
E

6
0
,5

4
7
.1

0
6
4
,7

0
5
.8

8
4
,1

5
8
.7

8
6
.4

7
3
1
,6

7
9
.0

4
7
7
6
,4

7
1
.0

0
4
4
,7

9
1
.9

6
5
.8

S
A

L
A

R
IE

S

1
7
,2

6
9
.1

3
6
,4

7
0
.6

2
)

(1
0
,7

9
8
.5

1
)

(1
6
6
.9

9
2
,3

6
0
.4

6
7
7
,6

4
7
.0

0
)

(1
4
,7

1
3
.4

6
)

(1
8
.9

P
T

O
 &

 S
IC

K

4
,9

7
3
.7

9
4
,9

5
0
.0

0
)

(2
3
.7

9
)

(0
.5

5
7
,0

2
1
.1

3
5
9
,4

0
0
.0

0
2
,3

7
8
.8

7
4
.0

S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 &
 M

E
D

IC
A

R
E

0
.0

0
8
8
.3

7
8
8
.3

7
1
0
0
.0

1
,0

5
6
.9

5
1
,0

6
0
.0

0
3
.0

5
0
.3

S
T
A

T
E

 P
A

Y
R

O
L
L
 T

A
X

E
S

 (
S

U
I,

 E
T

T
)

9
,2

4
2
.9

9
9
,9

1
8
.6

2
6
7
5
.6

3
6
.8

1
0
8
,7

2
1
.4

6
11

9
,0

2
3
.0

0
1
0
,3

0
1
.5

4
8
.7

P
U

B
L
IC

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
S

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 S

Y
S

T
E

M

11
,5

8
6
.4

8
1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
3
.5

2
3
.4

1
3
9
,2

8
8
.9

1
1
4
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
,7

11
.0

9
3
.3

G
R

O
U

P
 H

E
A

LT
H

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

1
,0

4
1
.5

1
2
,3

3
3
.3

7
1
,2

9
1
.8

6
5
5
.4

11
,6

8
9
.6

0
2
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
6
,3

1
0
.4

0
5
8
.3

W
O

R
K

E
R

'S
 C

O
M

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

6
,8

2
5
.2

5
5
,9

8
1
.8

8
)

(8
4
3
.3

7
)

(1
4
.1

6
9
,4

2
0
.7

2
7
1
,7

8
3
.0

0
2
,3

6
2
.2

8
3
.3

L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

6
4
0
.0

0
1
,0

8
3
.3

7
4
4
3
.3

7
4
0
.9

1
0
,7

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,3

0
0
.0

0
1
7
.7

B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 C

O
M

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

1
2
9
.4

0
1
0
,9

5
3
.7

5
1
0
,8

2
4
.3

5
9
8
.8

9
8
,4

1
3
.7

8
1
3
1
,4

4
5
.0

0
3
3
,0

3
1
.2

2
2
5
.1

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 L
A

B
O

R

1
,6

6
6
.6

4
5
,9

5
8
.3

7
4
,2

9
1
.7

3
7
2
.0

9
3
,8

3
9
.2

9
7
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(2
2
,3

3
9
.2

9
)

(3
1
.2

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

(A
u
d
it
, 

E
n
g
r,

D
ra

ft
)

2
,9

2
8
.8

7
1
,8

0
0
.0

0
)

(1
,1

2
8
.8

7
)

(6
2
.7

1
8
,9

0
8
.0

7
2
1
,6

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

9
1
.9

3
1
2
.5

F
U

E
L

1
,9

1
5
.2

8
8
3
3
.3

7
)

(1
,0

8
1
.9

1
)

(1
2
9
.8

6
,4

3
0
.2

2
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

6
9
.7

8
3
5
.7

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

4
,3

5
0
.3

5
5
,6

5
0
.0

0
1
,2

9
9
.6

5
2
3
.0

6
8
,7

3
9
.2

6
6
7
,8

0
0
.0

0
)

(9
3
9
.2

6
)

(1
.4

O
F

F
IC

E
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

11
0
.7

6
4
,5

8
3
.3

7
4
,4

7
2
.6

1
9
7
.6

4
4
,0

0
1
.5

3
5
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,9

9
8
.4

7
2
0
.0

F
IE

L
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

6
,7

0
8
.6

4
8
,1

6
5
.6

2
1
,4

5
6
.9

8
1
7
.8

9
8
,5

2
0
.7

1
9
7
,9

8
7
.0

0
)

(5
3
3
.7

1
)

(0
.5

M
E

T
E

R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 &
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

3
5
.1

4
4
1
6
.6

3
3
8
1
.4

9
9
1
.6

3
6
8
.9

4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
,6

3
1
.0

6
9
2
.6

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 R
E

N
T
A

L

1
6
,4

4
8
.9

5
7
,9

1
6
.6

3
)

(8
,5

3
2
.3

2
)

(1
0
7
.8

9
8
,4

9
3
.5

1
9
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(3
,4

9
3
.5

1
)

(3
.7

W
A

T
E

R
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

9
,2

4
7
.5

0
1
,4

1
6
.6

3
)

(7
,8

3
0
.8

7
)

(5
5
2
.8

2
2
,0

0
8
.7

0
1
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(5
,0

0
8
.7

0
)

(2
9
.5

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 L
E

G
A

L
 C

O
U

N
S

E
L

0
.0

0
2
9
,1

6
6
.6

3
2
9
,1

6
6
.6

3
1
0
0
.0

0
.0

0
3
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

%
1
8
.4

%
9
.4

T
o

ta
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$
2
0
7
,0

9
8
.4

8
$
4
5
7
,2

8
6
.0

2
$
2
,4

8
5
,1

8
0
.0

0
$
2
,0

2
7
,8

9
3
.9

8
$
1
9
,5

3
2
.1

9
$
1
8
7
,5

6
6
.2

9

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
&

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

2
1
,2

0
8
.7

7
1
2
,0

8
3
.3

7
)

(9
,1

2
5
.4

0
)

(7
5
.5

1
3
0
,1

1
5
.4

2
1
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
,8

8
4
.5

8
1
0
.3

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
,4

6
7
.2

4
1
,1

9
1
.6

3
)

(2
7
5
.6

1
)

(2
3
.1

11
,9

3
2
.2

1
1
4
,3

0
0
.0

0
2
,3

6
7
.7

9
1
6
.6

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
 &

 I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

1
3
1
.6

7
1
3
4
.6

3
2
.9

6
2
.2

1
,5

8
0
.0

4
1
,6

1
6
.0

0
3
5
.9

6
2
.2

L
A

F
C

O
 F

E
E

S

9
5
1
.1

5
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
4
8
.8

5
2
0
.7

9
,8

6
1
.1

9
1
4
,4

0
0
.0

0
4
,5

3
8
.8

1
3
1
.5

B
A

N
K

 F
E

E
S

 A
N

D
 M

IS
C

E
L
L
A

N
E

O
U

S

1
,7

8
4
.0

0
2
,0

8
3
.3

7
2
9
9
.3

7
1
4
.4

2
1
,6

5
8
.9

7
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

4
1
.0

3
1
3
.4

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
,D

U
E

S
,S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
S

6
,4

3
1
.5

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
)

(5
,2

3
1
.5

0
)

(4
3
6
.0

1
0
,8

7
4
.4

8
1
4
,4

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

2
5
.5

2
2
4
.5

P
U

B
L
IC

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

/E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

/C
O

N
S

E
R

V

0
.0

0
3
3
3
.3

7
3
3
3
.3

7
1
0
0
.0

3
,1

5
6
.6

3
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
8
4
3
.3

7
2
1
.1

L
E

G
A

L
 N

O
T

IC
E

S
 &

 N
E

W
S

L
E

T
T

E
R

S

0
.0

0
3
4
1
.6

3
3
4
1
.6

3
1
0
0
.0

3
,9

6
1
.0

6
4
,1

0
0
.0

0
1
3
8
.9

4
3
.4

E
L
E

C
T

IO
N

S

9
0
.8

3
4
1
6
.6

3
3
2
5
.8

0
7
8
.2

6
2
7
.9

8
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
,3

7
2
.0

2
8
7
.4

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

 T
R

A
V

E
L
/E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

2
8
9
.0

0
4
1
6
.6

3
1
2
7
.6

3
3
0
.6

3
,8

5
7
.5

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

4
2
.5

0
2
2
.9

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 15 of 82



V
e
n

tu
ra

 R
iv

e
r 

W
a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

In
c
o

m
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

(O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 A
c
tu

a
l 
C

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
)

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

 6
/1

/2
0

2
3

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 6
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

Y
e
a
r 

T
o

 D
a
te

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

%
%

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

8
7
0
.0

0
1
,0

8
3
.3

7
2
1
3
.3

7
1
9
.7

1
0
,3

7
0
.0

4
1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

2
9
.9

6
2
0
.2

P
O

S
T
A

G
E

2
,4

9
7
.5

9
1
,4

1
6
.6

3
)

(1
,0

8
0
.9

6
)

(7
6
.3

1
7
,4

4
6
.5

2
1
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(4
4
6
.5

2
)

(2
.6

O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
L
IE

S

1
7
2
.6

7
4
,5

8
3
.3

7
4
,4

1
0
.7

0
9
6
.2

6
,3

6
2
.2

0
5
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
8
,6

3
7
.8

0
8
8
.4

V
E

N
T

U
R

A
 R

IV
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

S
H

E
D

 I
S

S
U

E
S

0
.0

0
3
3
3
.3

7
3
3
3
.3

7
1
0
0
.0

0
.0

0
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

B
A

D
 D

E
B

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

4
3
,9

6
7
.5

0
3
,3

3
3
.3

7
)

(4
0
,6

3
4
.1

3
)

(1
2
1
9
.0

8
3
,0

6
6
.1

9
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(4
3
,0

6
6
.1

9
)

(1
0
7
.7

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N

%
1
3
.0

%)
(1

6
4
.9

T
o

ta
l 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
&

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$
3
0
,1

5
1
.3

7
$
4
6
,9

4
5
.5

7
$
3
6
1
,8

1
6
.0

0
$
3
1
4
,8

7
0
.4

3
)

$
(4

9
,7

1
0
.5

5
$
7
9
,8

6
1
.9

2

%
1
7
.7

T
o

ta
l 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$
2
6
7
,4

2
8
.2

1
)

$
(3

0
,1

7
8
.3

6
%)

(1
2
.7

$
2
3
7
,2

4
9
.8

5
$
2
,3

4
2
,7

6
4
.4

1
$
2
,8

4
6
,9

9
6
.0

0
$
5
0
4
,2

3
1
.5

9

In
c
o

m
e
 (

L
o

s
s
) 

fr
o

m
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

)
$
(6

9
,0

9
6
.4

2
$
2
7
,5

2
3
.1

5
)

$
(9

6
,6

1
9
.5

7
%)

(3
5
1
.0

%)
(2

2
.6

)
$
(3

0
,9

6
0
.5

2
)

$
(1

3
7
,1

9
6
.0

0
)

$
(1

6
8
,1

5
6
.5

2

 O
th

e
r 

In
c
o

m
e
 (

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
)

$
1
3
,6

5
4
.2

2
$
4
,1

6
6
.6

3
$
9
,4

8
7
.5

9
%

2
2
7
.7

$
6
6
,6

7
9
.7

8
$
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
6
,6

7
9
.7

8
%

3
3
.4

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
E

S

5
,6

3
2
.4

2
5
0
0
.0

0
5
,1

3
2
.4

2
1
0
2
6
.5

1
9
,5

4
2
.8

9
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,5

4
2
.8

9
2
2
5
.7

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E

2
,9

4
3
.9

4
4
1
6
.6

3
2
,5

2
7
.3

1
6
0
6
.6

3
8
,7

8
6
.0

7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
,7

8
6
.0

7
6
7
5
.7

O
T

H
E

R
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

0
.0

0
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(7
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

(1
0
0
.0

0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

(1
0
0
.0

S
R

F
 L

O
A

N
 P

R
O

C
E

E
D

S

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

2
5
,2

9
4
.5

9
0
.0

0
2
5
,2

9
4
.5

9
0
.0

G
R

A
N

T
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

%)
(0

.5
%

7
6
.7

T
o

ta
l 

O
th

e
r 

In
c
o

m
e
 (

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
)

$
1
2
,5

8
3
.2

6
)

$
(6

9
6
.6

7
$
1
5
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
5
0
,3

0
3
.3

3
$
9
,6

4
7
.3

2
$
2
2
,2

3
0
.5

8

%)
(2

2
9
.3

In
c
o

m
e
 B

e
fo

re
 T

a
x
e
s

)
$
(4

6
,8

6
5
.8

4
)

$
(8

6
,9

7
2
.2

5
%)

(2
1
6
.9

$
4
0
,1

0
6
.4

1
)

$
(1

7
,8

5
3
.1

9
$
1
3
,8

0
4
.0

0
)

$
(3

1
,6

5
7
.1

9

)
$
(4

6
,8

6
5
.8

4
N

e
t 

In
c
o
m

e
 (

L
o
s
s
)

)
$
(8

6
,9

7
2
.2

5
%)

(2
1
6
.9

$
1
3
,8

0
4
.0

0
)

$
(3

1
,6

5
7
.1

9
)

$
(1

7
,8

5
3
.1

9
%)

(2
2
9
.3

$
4
0
,1

0
6
.4

1

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 16 of 82



As of 6/30/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District9/15/23
4:35:42 AM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $742,809.73

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 526,979.24

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 11,008.74

RABO6073 102,198.74

PRO-EQUITIES 904,931.13

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 198,571.15

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE )(13,000.00

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 30,226.00

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 344.00

PREPAID WEB SERVICES 20.02

PREPAID INSURANCE 91,111.40

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 15,159.24

PREPAID OTHER 13,823.43

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $2,787,726.76

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,810,360.66

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 79,791.94

TRUCKS 278,657.71

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 299,988.35

BUILDINGS 1,810,567.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 37,541.85

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,905,339.00

COMPUTERS 1,810.14

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 305,662.80

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 66,423.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 409,298.44

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 105,445.07

REPLACE 2008 F-250 TRUCK 51,768.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(5,127,624.42

UPGRADE SCADA RADIOS 34,996.81

CASITAS SPRINGS EMERGENCY FIRE FLOW PUMP 15,825.75

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 13,797.00

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 8,253,393.53

Total Assets $11,041,120.29
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $57,044.56

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 17 of 82



As of 6/30/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District9/15/23
4:35:42 AM

PTO PAYABLE 164,900.29

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 3,471.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,295.03

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

FLIEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT )(434.98

DEPENDENT CARE 2,999.88

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $702,682.56

Total Liabilities $702,682.56
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,569,865.92

Current Year Profit/Loss A )(17,853.19

Total Equity 10,338,437.73A

Total Liabilities and Equity $11,041,120.29

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 18 of 82



W
a

te
r 

S
y

s
te

m
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/(

O
v

e
r)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
/S

ta
tu

s

1
3

0
1

4
W

e
ll 

#
6

 (
W

e
ll 

#
5

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t)

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
 

R
e

ta
in

in
g
 w

a
ll,

 g
ra

v
e

l p
a

d
 (

P
o

s
tp

o
n
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9

)
1

3
0

4
0

M
ix

in
g
 V

a
lv

e
 S

o
u
th

 A
lto

 T
a

n
k

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
 

M
o

d
if
ic

a
tio

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 e
x
is

tin
g
 v

a
lv

e
s
 t
h
e

n
 d

o
 S

o
u
th

 T
a

n
k 

in
 2

0
2

2
.

1
3

0
7

0
S

a
n
ta

 A
n
a

 B
lv

d
 F

ir
e

 F
lo

w
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

4
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

1
9

.5
0

$
  

  
4

4
,9

8
0

.5
0

$
  

  
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 in

 2
0

2
4

1
3

0
5

7
R

e
-p

lu
m

b
 E

n
c
in

o
 &

 T
h
o

m
a

s
 P

R
V

 V
a

u
lts

 -
 D

e
s
ig

n
1

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
1

,0
7

2
.5

0
$

  
  

1
0

,9
2

7
.5

0
$

  
  
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 in

 2
0

2
4

1
3

0
6

1
W

e
ll 

#
2

 &
 3

 P
u
m

p
 &

 P
a

n
n
e

l R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

3
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
 

2
,3

7
0

.0
0

$
  

  
3

2
2

,6
3

0
.0

0
$

  
  
 

P
u
m

p
 &

 P
a

n
e

l R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

1
3

1
0

4
U

p
g
ra

d
e

 S
C

A
D

A
 R

a
d

io
s

3
5

,0
1

2
.0

0
$

  
  

3
4

,9
9

6
.8

1
$

  
  

1
5

.1
9

$
  

  
R

e
p
la

c
e

 S
C

A
D

A
 r

a
d

io
s
 &

 a
n
te

n
n
a

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

lo
c
a

te
 a

n
te

n
n
a

s
1

3
1

0
5

C
a

s
ita

s
 S

p
ri
n
g
s
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y 

F
ir
e

 F
lo

w
 P

u
m

p
2

5
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

1
5

,8
2

5
.7

5
$

  
  

2
3

4
,1

7
4

.2
5

$
  

  
 

N
e

e
d

e
d

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

d
ro

p
p
in

g
 L

a
ke

 C
a

s
ita

s
 le

v
e

ls
1

3
0

9
4

T
ic

o
 M

u
tu

a
l A

n
n
e

x
a

tio
n
 P

ro
je

c
t

9
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

2
5

,8
1

9
.3

0
$

  
  

6
4

,1
8

0
.7

0
$

  
  
 

L
A

F
C

o
 A

p
p
lic

a
tio

n
, 
D

e
s
ig

n
 E

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n
g
, 
S

R
F

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

tio
n

1
3

0
9

8
S

R
F

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 ,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l, 
E

n
g
r,

 E
a

s
e

m
ts

5
2

3
,0

0
0

$
  

  
1

9
1

,8
4

3
.9

0
$

  
  
 

3
3

1
,1

5
6

.1
0

$
  

  
 

A
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 P
h
o

e
n
ix

 =
 $

6
5

8
,0

0
0

 (
1

3
0

9
8

 &
 1

3
0

9
9

),
 P

o
th

o
lin

g
 &

 E
a

s
e

m
e

n
ts

1
3

0
9

9
S

R
F

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 P

o
th

o
lin

g
1

2
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

7
0

,3
0

8
.5

8
$

  
  

4
9

,6
9

1
.4

2
$

  
  
 

2
0

2
3

 P
o

th
o

lin
g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
(b

u
d

g
e

t 
tr

a
n
s
fe

r 
#

1
)

1
3

1
0

0
S

R
F

 S
o

la
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 ,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l, 
E

n
g
r

8
1

,0
0

0
$

  
  

5
7

,0
1

3
.2

7
$

  
  

2
3

,9
8

6
.7

3
$

  
  
 

A
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 P
h
o

e
n
ix

 =
 $

1
1

4
,2

2
7

T
o

ta
l

1
,5

2
1

,0
1

2
$

  
  

3
9

9
,2

7
0

$
  

  
1

,1
2

1
,7

4
2

$
  

  
 

A
u

to
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/O

v
e

r
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

/S
ta

tu
s

1
3

1
0

1
R

e
p
la

c
e

 2
0

0
8

 F
-2

5
0

 W
o

rk
tr

u
c
k

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

5
1

,7
6

8
.0

5
$

  
  

3
,2

3
1

.9
5

$
  

  
 

R
e

p
la

c
e

 2
0

0
8

 F
o

rd
 F

-2
5

0
 w

o
rk

 t
ru

c
k

S
h

o
p

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/O

v
e

r
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

/S
ta

tu
s

1
3

0
9

2
V

a
lv

e
 T

u
rn

 M
a

c
h
in

e
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
 G

P
S

 f
o

r 
G

IS
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
 

T
h
is

 u
p
g
ra

d
e

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e

 lo
c
a

tio
n
 o

f 
v
a

lv
e

s
 a

s
 t
h
e

y 
a

re
 e

x
e

rs
iz

e
d

 a
n
d

 im
p
o

rt
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 t
h
e

 G
IS

 s
ys

te
m

.
O

ff
ic

e
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
t

2
2

/2
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
T

D
 

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
/O

v
e

r
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

/S
ta

tu
s

1
3

0
5

4
C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
U

p
g
ra

d
e

s
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

1
,8

1
0

.1
4

$
  

  
6

,1
8

9
.8

6
$

  
  
 

S
c
a

n
n
e

r 
fo

r 
fr

o
n
t 
o

ff
ic

e
, 
a

g
m

 c
o

m
p
u
te

r,
 s

m
a

ll 
d

e
s
kt

o
p
 p

ri
n
te

r

S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
,5

8
8

,5
1

2
.0

0
$

  
 

4
5

2
,8

4
7

.8
0

$
  

  
 

1
,1

3
5

,6
6

4
.2

0
$

  
  
 

V
E

N
T

U
R

A
 R

IV
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
ta

tu
s

 o
f 

C
a

p
it

a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 -

 F
Y

E
 2

0
2

3

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 19 of 82



 

DATE: September 20, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVE CONSOLIDATION AGREEMENT WITH CASITAS MUTUAL 
WATER COMPANY 

 
SUMMARY 

The Board directed staff to work on a Consolidation Agreement to merge Casitas Mutual 
Water Company (Casitas Mutual) with the Ventura River Water District (District). The 
Consolidation Agreement is needed to begin the consolidation process and pursue the 
grant monies needed for the water infrastructure improvements. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board approve the Consolidation 
Agreement between the District and Casitas Mutual.  

 
BACKGROUND 

Casitas Mutual serves about 83 customers on the west side of Hwy 33 in the Casitas 
Springs area (Attachment 5A). The District serves the area to the east of Casitas Mutual.  

Casitas Mutual requested consolidation with the District in July of 2008 and June of 2018. 
Both times, the request was deemed impractical due to the significant cost of 
improvements needed to bring the system into compliance combined with a lack of 
funding. The District recommended that Casitas Mutual reach out to Casitas Municipal 
Water District (CMWD) to take on the task. CMWD also denied the request for 
consolidation.  

In May of 2023, Casitas Mutual held an election among their shareholders to consolidate 
with the District. Thirty-eight ballots were received via U.S Mail representing 123 shares 
(50% of total shares). Of the ballots received, 83% voted ‘yes’ to consolidate with the 
District.  

This year, Casitas Mutual once again reached out to the District to request consolidation 
as funding to complete the needed improvements is available in the form of a $980,000 
grant from the Department of Water Resources (DWR). The State’s Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund (DWSRF) program will provide 100% funding through a grant for the 
remaining costs to upgrade the water system.  

As an incentive to consolidate, the District is tentatively eligible for up to an additional $10 
million zero-interest, 20-year loan for unrelated projects, provided funding exists at the 
time the loan documents are signed. 

Agenda Packet - Page 20 of 82



 
Casitas Mutual Consolidation Agreement 
Page 2 of 2 

In June of 2023, the Board authorized staff to begin preparation of a Consolidation 
Agreement. The agreement presented today has been reviewed by both Casitas Mutual’s 
and the District’s legal counsels. 

Key Elements of the Consolidation Agreement 

 Funding sources identified (Recital J):  

o Expedited Drinking Water Grant – could potentially pay for needed 
improvements to consolidate. 

o Small Community Drought Relief Program – offered through DWR, Casitas 
Mutual was awarded $980,200 for improvements. 

 Provides termination of agreement clause for either party if funding is 
reduced/unavailable, or if the District is unable to obtain an incentive loan (Recital 
M). 

 Casitas Mutual will cease to exist as a water company after consolidation (Section 
4a). 

 Transfer of Casitas Mutuals assets are defined, including their well and any water 
allocations, when consolidation is complete (Section 4b). 

 Both the District and Casitas Mutual’s responsibilities are defined (Section 4c). 

 Defines insurance requirements (Section 6). 

 Each party is indemnified (Section 7). 

 Provides mechanism for dispute resolution (Section 8). 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact to approve the Consolidation Agreement.  
 
All the improvements to the Casitas Mutual service area will be funded by the State 
Division of Drinking Water.  
 
An additional zero interest 20-year loan of up to $10M could be a financial benefit for 
Ventura River Water District customers and could be utilized in 2026 or 2027. 
 
Attachments: 
 5A – Map of Service Areas 
 5B – Consolidation Agreement 

Agenda Packet - Page 21 of 82



0 480 960 1,440 1,920240
Feet

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

.
Casitas Mutual Water Company Service Area

Casitas Mutual

Ventura River Water District, 
(Casitas Springs Area)

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 22 of 82



CONSOLIDATION AND WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CASITAS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY  

AND  
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

This  CONSOLIDATION  AND WATER  SERVICE  AGREEMENT  (“Agreement”)  is made  and 
entered  into  this 20th day of  September, 2023, by  and between  the VENTURA RIVER 
WATER DISTRICT, a California special district  (“VRWD”), and CASITAS MUTUAL WATER 
COMPANY, a California corporation  (“Casitas Mutual”).   VRWD and Casitas Mutual are 
hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the “Parties” and each a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. VRWD is a California special district formed in 1956 and operating under the provisions of
the County Water District Law, Water Code Section 30000 et seq. VRWD is a retail water
purveyor for areas in the unincorporated portion of Ventura County as well as a portion
of the City of Ojai. VRWD’s service area is comprised of approximately 2,100 acres and is
depicted in Exhibit 1 attached hereto (the “VRWD Service Area”). VRWD provides potable
water  service  for  residential, and commercial uses. VRWD does not provide water  for
agricultural  irrigation. VRWD  primarily  produces water  from  its  groundwater  sources.
VRWD also receives treated surface water from Lake Casitas.

B. Casitas Mutual  is a mutual water company that operates  in Ventura County, California.
Casitas Mutual incorporated in 1932 and operates pursuant to its Articles of Incorporation
filed with  the  California  Secretary  of  State  on  June  8,  1932  (“Articles”)  and  its  First
Amended Bylaws of Casitas Mutual Water Company adopted on December 28, 1983 (“By‐
Laws”).

C. Casitas Mutual’s  current  service  area  is  illustrated  in  Exhibit  2  attached  hereto  (the
“Casitas Mutual Service Area”) and  is generally  in  the unincorporated area of Ventura
County that is bounded by the Ventura River to the west and North Ventura Avenue (Hwy
33) to the east except for shareholders in the Parkview Drive area.  The Assessor Parcel
Numbers of the parcels within the Casitas Mutual Service Area are included in Exhibit 3
attached hereto.

D. Casitas Mutual operates a groundwater well  located on  land owned by Casitas Mutual,
designated  as  APN  #  061‐0‐190‐050.  The  well  is  identified  as  State  Well  Number
03N23W05H01S (the “Casitas Mutual Well”). Casitas Mutual also owns a pumping surge
tank on the same property.

E. Casitas Mutual operates as a “small community water system,” as defined by Health and
Safety Code Section 116275, and maintains a Domestic Water Supply Permit  from  the
Division of Drinking Water of the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Board”)
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 116525, et seq.

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 23 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 2 of 28  

 

F. The  County  of  Ventura  (“County”)  Public Works  Agency  established  a  policy  in  2014 
requiring Casitas Mutual, among others,  to demonstrate compliance with  the Ventura 
County Water Works Manual  (“Manual”) before  the County will accept any Will Serve 
Letters for water service within the Casitas Mutual Service Area.  Such letters are required 
prior to the issuance of discretionary land use entitlements by the County. Casitas Mutual 
has determined that Casitas Mutual’s system must be reconstructed, at substantial cost, 
to meet the Manual’s requirements.  

G. In order to promote and protect the health and safety of its shareholders, Casitas Mutual 
wishes  to  explore  and  pursue  the  termination  of  its  service  of  potable  water  and 
dissolution  as  a mutual  water  company.  In  furtherance  of  this  goal,  Casitas Mutual 
submitted a request to VRWD whereby VRWD would assume responsibility for providing 
potable water to Casitas Mutual’s shareholders within the Casitas Mutual Service Area.  

H. Casitas Mutual held an election of Shareholders in May 2023 and a total of 38 ballots were 
received  via  U.S  Mail  representing  123  shares,  83%  of  those  shares  voted  ‘yes’  to 
consolidate with VRWD.  Election documents are included in Exhibits 4, 5 & 6.   

I. The Parties acknowledge  that  this  consolidation process will  require  further planning, 
engineering, and permitting work, including approval by the Ventura County Local Agency 
Formation Commission (“LAFCo”), as well as the construction of new or modified water 
infrastructure. 

J. Funding for this work is from three programs with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. 

1) The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program (DWSRF) is offered by the 
State Water Resources Control Board and provides loans and grants to assist the 
consolidation of mutual water companies  into public water agencies.   The grant 
funding level can vary depending upon state review of eligibility of the community. 
Currently, Casitas Mutual qualifies for 100% funding for the public improvements.  
If the grant does not fund 100% of improvements, the balance would be provided 
by a  low  interest  loan with  terms  ranging  from 20  to 40 years depending upon 
eligibility of the community.  

2) The Expedited Drinking Water Grant (EDWG) Funding Program is the same as the 
DWSRF but  the processing  time  is  reduced.   This  is a new program currently  in 
development and is by invitation only.  

3) Small Community Drought Relief Program  through  the California Department of 
Water Resources (DWR) has provided a $980,200 grant to Casitas Mutual to fund 
some of the improvements needed for consolidation pursuant to Grant Agreement 
No. 4600014884.   All work funded by the agreement must be completed by June 
28, 2024, unless a time extension is granted by DWR. 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 24 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 3 of 28  

 

K. VRWD is eligible to apply for a grant and/or a loan through the DWSRF Funding Program 
with  the  support of  the Division of Drinking Water’s  Santa Barbara Office,  to provide 
funding for the planning and construction of the infrastructure improvements required to 
allow  VRWD  to  assume  potable  water  service  obligations  for  Casitas  Mutual’s 
shareholders. This funding will supplement expenses that are not covered by the DWR 
Grant so all the necessary improvements may be constructed.  The District may utilize the 
EDWG program if it is invited to participate.  

L. VRWD is also eligible to apply for up to $10 million in a zero‐interest as an incentive loan 
to fund District Capital Improvement Projects separate from the consolidation work.  The 
incentive loan term is for 20‐years with zero‐interest and funded through the DWSRF.  

M. If  the  DWSRF  or  EDWG  grant  and/or  loan  become  unavailable  or  reduced  for 
consolidation work or Casitas Mutual  is unable provide supplemental  funding to cover 
consolidation costs not covered under the DWR Grant, either party may terminate this 
Agreement.    If  VRWD  is  unable  to  obtain  an  incentive  loan  for  capital  improvement 
projects separate from the consolidation work or if the zero‐interest rate is changed to an 
interest rate unacceptable to VRWD, then VRWD may terminate this Agreement. 

N. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to provide for the engineering, planning, 
environmental  review,  permitting,  and  construction  work  necessary  to  consolidate 
Casitas Mutual’s potable water service into VRWD. 

AGREEMENT 

Now, therefore the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. All the above recitals are incorporated herein, and 
the Parties acknowledge that the recitals are correct. All the exhibits to this Agreement are 
incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth. 

2. Potable Water System Consolidation. 

a. The  Parties  enter  into  this  Agreement  to  further  the  engineering,  planning, 
environmental review, permitting, and construction work necessary to consolidate 
Casitas Mutual’s potable water service into VRWD. The Parties anticipate that such 
work will include fees associated with VRWD’s own engineering, planning, review, 
and  construction work  as well  as  fees  for:  outside  engineers  and  consultants; 
governmental  agency  permitting  (LAFCo,  Caltrans,  and  County),  approvals,  and 
review;  water  system  infrastructure  improvements;  and  other  miscellaneous 
related expenses. 

b. Within  thirty  (30)  days  after  execution  of  this Agreement,  Casitas Mutual  shall 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 25 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 4 of 28  

assign  a  person  or  persons  (“Casitas Mutual’s  Representatives”)  to  work  with 
VRWD  staff,  State  Board  staff,  and  others  to  determine  what  water  system 
improvements will  be  required  to  connect  Casitas Mutual’s  shareholders with 
VRWD. Casitas Mutual’s Representatives shall also work with VRWD staff to: select 
consultants and engineers, as needed; assist VRWD with all required permits and 
approvals, including annexation of portions of the Casitas Mutual Service Area into 
the VRWD Service Area by LAFCo; apply for funding pursuant to Section 3 below; 
and,  if the Parties receive all approvals  for, and elect to complete the necessary 
work to consolidate Casitas Mutual’s potable water service into VRWD, coordinate 
the  construction  of  water  system  infrastructure  necessary  for  VRWD  to  serve 
potable water to Casitas Mutual’s shareholders. 

c. At a minimum, the Parties shall design and plan for the following: 

i. Each  Casitas Mutual  shareholder  shall  be  connected  to  VRWD’s  water 
system and shall receive potable water solely from VRWD. 

ii. Each Casitas Mutual shareholder property shall have a meter and a pressure 
reducer because at full lake conditions the static pressure is about 120 psi. 
The meter shall typically be ¾” or sized in accordance with the property’s 
usage  history.    Casitas  Mutual  shareholders  shall  be  responsible  for 
installing and maintaining the pipe  from the VRWD meter to their home, 
including a pressure reducer, and for disconnecting their home from Casitas 
Mutual’s existing facilities.  DWSRF grant monies may be available for some 
Casitas Mutual  shareholders  to  fund  the water  service work  on  private 
property as determined on a case‐by‐case basis by DWSRF staff.    

iii. VRWD shall install the water system infrastructure, including water mains 
and service laterals, from the main to the meter, and meters, in the public 
right  of  way  or  easement  and  near  the  Casitas  Mutual  shareholder’s 
property line. Such infrastructure shall be owned and maintained by VRWD.  

iv. VRWD  shall  install  fire  hydrants  at  500‐foot  spacing  that  provide  at  a 
minimum  1,000  gallons  per minute  for  residential  properties  and  1,250 
gallons per minute for commercial properties, as approved by the Ventura 
County Fire Protection District. 

  
d. VRWD has a Capacity Charge for new connections which is currently $4,365 for a 

¾” meter and $7,406 for a 1” meter (unless the 1” meter is needed solely for fire 
sprinklers,  in which case the cost  is $4,365).   Payment of the Capacity Charge  is 
currently an eligible expense under the DWSRF program.  If DWSRF program does 
not fund the Capacity Charge this agreement may be terminated in accordance with 
Recital M.  

e. Casitas  Mutual  shall  coordinate  requests  to  its  shareholders  to  dedicate 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 26 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 5 of 28  

construction, maintenance, or operational easements as required to accommodate 
the water  system  improvements  that will be  installed, owned  and operated by 
VRWD outside of the public right‐of‐way.  If easements must be obtained through 
the eminent domain process, Casitas Mutual shall be responsible for the associated 
costs.  Such  costs may  be  eligible  in  the  DWSRF  program  and  subject  to  State 
approval.  

3. Loan Request and Repayment.  

a. VRWD is authorized to seek interest‐free DWSRF loan funding in the amount 
of up to $10,000,000 from the DWSRF.  

b. Prior to obtaining the DWSRF grant for construction, Casitas Mutual shall fund 
or  support  funding  from  outside  agencies  for  the  preliminary  engineering, 
environmental, VRWD staff time, and LAFCo fees and expenses in furtherance 
of  preliminary  engineering,  planning,  and  environmental  work,  then  final 
engineering  for  building  the  infrastructure  required  for  VRWD  to  provide 
service  to  Casitas Mutual’s  shareholders  and  to  seek  and  obtain  approvals, 
including LAFCo annexation fees, such that VRWD may provide potable water 
service  to  Casitas Mutual’s  shareholders.    Casitas Mutual may  provide  the 
funding by working with VRWD to: obtain a scope of work modification to the 
DWR  Grant,  obtaining  technical  assistance  through  DWSRF  or  obtaining 
Planning funding through DWSRF.     

c. VRWD may  elect  to  borrow  additional  funds  through  the  DWSRF  program  for 
unrelated projects or matters. In such event, VRWD shall be solely responsible for 
any loans or amounts, and VRWD shall indemnify and hold Casitas Mutual harmless 
from  any  claim  against  Casitas  Mutual  or  its  directors,  shareholders,  or 
representatives for the repayment of any such loans obtained by VRWD.  

d. VRWD will apply  for the DWSRF  funding  for  construction of  the  consolidation 
improvements  and  shall  administer  the  construction  contracts.   VRWD  shall 
implement  administrative  requirements  associated  with  the  DWSRF  grant.  
Casitas Mutual shall support such financing application and the construction of 
improvements.  

4. Consolidation.  The  following  shall  occur  upon  completion  of  all  approvals  and 
infrastructure  required  for VRWD  to provide potable water  service  to Casitas Mutual’s 
shareholders: 

a. Cessation of Water Service.  

i. Casitas Mutual shall (i) cease providing water to its shareholders: (ii) submit 
a request to the Division of Drinking Water that its Domestic Water Supply 
Permit  be  cancelled;  and  (iii)  seek  to  cancel  any  related  or  associated 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 27 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 6 of 28  

licenses,  approvals,  or  permits  arising  from  its  service  of  water  and 
otherwise cease and terminate all operations as a mutual water company.  

ii. Casitas Mutual shall dissolve and cease to exist as a public water system. 

iii. Casitas Mutual shall support the dedication of any and all allocation from 
Casitas Municipal Water District (“CMWD”) to VRWD.  Casitas Mutual shall 
cooperate in executing any agreements or authorizing any documents in the 
furtherance of  the  transfer. VRWD  shall utilize  this allocation  to provide 
water to its Casitas Springs customers.   

iv. The  Parties  understand  and  acknowledge  that  there  is  a  pending 
adjudication of the Ventura River Watershed, which  includes the Ventura 
River as well as four groundwater basins, including the groundwater basin(s) 
from which VRWD and Casitas Mutual produce water. Each Party reserves 
the  right  to  pursue,  or  not,  any  claims  in  such  adjudication  in  its  sole 
discretion.  

b. Existing Casitas Mutual Assets and Infrastructure.  

i. Casitas Mutual shall convey, assign, or otherwise transfer to VRWD all of its 
rights, title, water allocation, and interest with respect to the Casitas Mutual 
Well and all related pumps, pipes, tank, and other facilities, and the well site 
property  for  future  use  to  provide  water  to  VRWD’s  customers  in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.   

ii. Customer‐Owned Service Line Inventory. 

On or before October 16, 2024, and in accordance with the Environmental 
Protection Agency’s (“EPA”) Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR), Casitas 
Mutual must complete a comprehensive and accurate inventory of all the 
service lines within its water delivery system regardless of ownership. The 
inventory should include all the required elements under the LCRR for both 
the “System‐Owned” portions and the “Customer‐Owned” portions of the 
service  line  as  summarized  in  the  EPA’s  Guidance  for  Developing  and 
Maintaining a Service Line Inventory.  

The Guidance Manual and a template for how this information should be 
organized for State submittal can be accessed here: 
https://www.epa.gov/ground‐water‐and‐drinking‐water/revised‐lead‐and‐
copper‐rule.  

Casitas Mutual is to provide a copy of the service line inventory to the State 
and VRWD. 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 28 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 7 of 28  

If  any  of  the  service  lateral  inventory  information  changes  or  new 
information is discovered prior to the completion consolidation with VRWD 
as  contemplated  by  this  Agreement,  then  Casitas Mutual  shall  provide 
VRWD with the most current information prior to consolidation.  

iii. Definitions.   As used herein, the  following terms shall have the  following 
meanings: 

“Customer‐Owned” service  line  is the portion of the service  line from the 
water meter  to a private  residence and  is owned and maintained by  the 
property owner. 

“System‐Owned”  service  line  is  the  portion  of  the  service  line  from  the 
water main to the water meter and owned and maintained by VRWD. 

iv.  Casitas Mutual  is presently obligated under  two agreements  intended  to 
upgrade its facilities to current standards.  These Agreements are: 

1.  “Funding Agreement between the State of California, Department 
of Water  Resources  and  Casitas Mutual Water  Company  –  Agreement 
Number  4600014884,”  (DWR  Grant)  dated  December  1,  2022,  which 
provides  grant  funding  for  some  of  the water  system  improvements  to 
Casitas Mutual’s existing system’ and, 

2.  “Agreement  between  the  Casitas  Mutual  Water  Company  and 
NextGen Engineering for Casitas Water System Improvements and Drought 
Resiliency Project”  (NextGen Agreement) dated  January 17, 2023, which 
provides engineering design services funded by the DWR Grant. 

Casitas Mutual shall assign the rights and obligations of both agreements to 
VRWD, and VRWD agrees to accept said assignments, upon joint receipt of 
written  authorization  from  each  of  the  respective  parties  to  said 
agreements (DWR and NextGen). 

c. Rights and Privileges of Casitas Mutual’s Shareholders.  

i. Casitas Mutual’s  shareholders  shall  enjoy  all  the  rights  and privileges of 
being a VRWD customer and shall be subject to VRWD’s standard rules and 
regulations,  including  VRWD’s  standard water  rates,  except  as  provided 
herein.  

ii. VRWD  and  its  customers  are  bound  by  the  drought  stage  water 
conservation requirements adopted by CMWD as described  in the Water 
Service Agreement between VRWD and CMWD, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit 7. As VRWD customers, Casitas Mutual’s shareholders shall 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 29 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 8 of 28  

be subject to the same requirements of the said Water Service Agreement.  

5. Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit 
of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

6. Insurance.   The Parties shall, at  their own cost and expense, and until all water system 
improvements  required  for  VRWD  to  provide  potable  water  to  Casitas  Mutual’s 
shareholders are complete, carry adequate  insurance to protect each Party from claims 
under the Worker’s Compensation Acts.  Each Party shall also, at its cost and expense and 
throughout the term of this Agreement and any extensions thereof, carry: (a) a general 
personal  injury  and  property  damage  liability  insurance  policy  (including  coverage  for 
products and contractual obligations), and (b) an automobile liability insurance policy, to 
the extent that either party has employees and/or vehicles. If not, this provision shall not 
apply  as  to Workers  Compensation  insurance  or  automobile  insurance.    Each  of  the 
foregoing  insurance  policies  if  required,  shall  provide  liability  limits  of  not  less  than 
$1,000,000 per policy for the injury or death of a person or persons and property damage 
in any one accident or an annual aggregate minimum of $1,000,000 per policy. Each Party 
shall notify the other immediately if a Party’s general aggregate of insurance is exceeded 
by valid  litigated  claims, and  then additional  levels of  insurance must be purchased  to 
maintain the above stated requirements.  The insurance provided by each Party shall be 
primary and noncontributory.  Each type of insurance mentioned herein shall be written 
by a financially responsible company or companies authorized to do business in the State 
of California.    Each Party  agrees  to provide  the other with  copies of  certificates of  all 
policies  upon  written  request.  Each  policy  contemplated  under  this  Agreement  shall 
contain an endorsement that they are not subject to cancellation without thirty (30) days’ 
prior written notice, by  first class mail, being given  to  the other Party by  the  insurance 
company or companies writing such insurance, except that ten (10) days’ notice may be 
given if cancellation is due to nonpayment of premiums.  Each Party agrees to name the 
other as an additional insured on any general and automobile liability insurance policies. 

7. Indemnifications.  

a. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Casitas Mutual agrees to indemnify and 
defend  VRWD  and  its  officers,  directors,  officials,  agents,  employees,  and 
volunteers from any and all claims, demands, costs (including reasonable attorney’s 
fees) or liability that, directly or indirectly, arise out of, pertain to, or relate to (i) 
the breach of this Agreement by Casitas Mutual; or (ii) the negligence, recklessness, 
or willful misconduct of Casitas Mutual, provided,  that  this  indemnity does not 
apply  to  liability  for  damages  for  death  or  bodily  injury  to  persons,  injury  to 
property,  or  other  loss,  arising  from  the  sole  negligence, willful misconduct  or 
defects in design furnished by VRWD to Casitas Mutual, or arising from the active 
negligence of VRWD.  Except as provided in the foregoing sentence, Casitas Mutual 
will  indemnify and defend VRWD notwithstanding any alleged or actual passive 
negligence of VRWD which may have contributed to the claims, demands, costs or 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 30 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 9 of 28  

liability.   

b. To the maximum extent permitted by law, VRWD agrees to indemnify and defend 
Casitas  Mutual  and  its  officers,  directors,  officials,  agents,  employees, 
shareholders, and volunteers  from any and all claims, demands, costs  (including 
reasonable  attorney’s  fees)  or  liability  that,  directly  or  indirectly,  arise  out  of, 
pertain  to,  or  relate  to  (i)  the  breach  of  this  Agreement  by  VRWD;  or  (ii)  the 
negligence,  recklessness,  or  willful  misconduct  of  VRWD,  provided,  that  this 
indemnity  does  not  apply  to  liability  for  damages  for  death  or  bodily  injury  to 
persons,  injury  to property, or other  loss,  arising  from  the  active negligence of 
Casitas Mutual.  Except as provided in the foregoing sentence, VRWD will indemnify 
and  defend  Casitas  Mutual  notwithstanding  any  alleged  or  actual  passive 
negligence of Casitas Mutual which may have contributed to the claims, demands, 
costs or liability.     

c. Construction contracts awarded to perform work for Casitas Mutual shall include a 
provision to name Casitas Mutual and VRWD as additionally insured in amounts not 
less than as delineated in paragraph 6. 

d. The insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no way 
lessen  or  limit  the  liability  of  each  Party  under  the  terms  of  the  above 
indemnification obligations. 

e. The  terms of  this paragraph 7 shall survive  the expiration or  termination of  this 
Agreement.   

8. Dispute  Resolution.    Disputes  arising  under  or  related  to  the  performance  of  this 
Agreement shall be resolved by mediation or arbitration unless VRWD and Casitas Mutual 
agree in writing, after the dispute has arisen, to waive mediation or arbitration and to have 
the  claim or dispute  litigated  in  a  court of  competent  jurisdiction. Prior  to having  any 
dispute submitted to arbitration, the parties agree to first submit any unresolved dispute 
to mediation.  Both parties agree to retain the services of a mutually agreed upon mediator 
or a retired judge of the superior court to mediate the dispute.  If mediation fails, either 
side may request arbitration. The cost of the mediator shall be paid equally by both parties.  
The prevailing party shall be reimbursed for all costs and attorney fees by the losing party.  

   

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 31 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 10 of 28  

9. Notices. Any and all notices or other matters required or permitted by  this Agreement or 
by  law to be served on, given to, or delivered to either party by the other party to this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served, given, or delivered when 
personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed, or, in lieu of personal service, when 
deposited in the United States mail, first‐class postage prepaid, addressed to: 

For the VRWD:   Attn: VRWD General Manager (or current) 
Bert J. Rapp, P.E.  
Ventura River Water District 
409 Old Baldwin Road  
Ojai, CA  93023 
Cell: (805) 340‐7263 
Email:  Bert@VenturaRiverWD.com 
 

For Casitas Mutual:  Attn: Casitas Mutual Board President (or current) John 
Dickenson 

  8305 Edison Dr.  
Ventura, CA 93001 
Cell: (805) 340‐2830 
Email: Jmdiv@hotmail.com 
 

10. Termination.  Except  for  provisions  expressly  identified  above  as  surviving  beyond  the 
termination  of  this  Agreement,  this  Agreement  shall  terminate  after  acceptance  and 
closure of the grant by the Division of Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program 
or when the  final  financial obligations described  in Paragraph  [3] are met, whichever  is 
sooner.  

   

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 32 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 11 of 28  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Ventura River Water District has caused their presence to be executed 
by its officers, thereunto duly authorized, and Casitas Mutual has subscribed same, all on the day 
and year first above written. 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT  CASITAS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY 
 
 
By: ______________________________    By:_________________________________  
  Ed Lee, President    John Dickenson, President 
 
 
Approved as to form:          Casitas Mutual Board of Directors: 
 
 
__________________________________    ____________________________________ 

Stuart Nielson, District Legal Counsel     Janine Mazziotta, Chairperson 
 
 
Attest:             _________________________________ 
              Tom Reed, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________      ____________________________________ 

Bert J. Rapp, General Manager      Marina Roberson, Secretary 
 
 
              _________________________________ 
              Jaime Pena, CFO 
 
 
              ____________________________________ 

              Christine Salisbury, Director 
   

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 33 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 12 of 28  

VRWD SERVICE AREA 

 
    EXHIBIT 1 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 34 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 13 of 28  

CASITAS MUTUAL SERVICE AREA MAP 

 
 

EXHIBIT 2 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 35 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 14 of 28  

ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS FOR CASITAS MUTUAL WATER 
COMPANY  

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

# Parcel Number # Parcel Number # Parcel Number 
1 061‐0‐190‐020   32 061‐0‐211‐165  63 061‐0‐212‐315 
2 061‐0‐190‐030  33 061‐0‐211‐185  64 061‐0‐220‐010 
3 061‐0‐190‐050  34 061‐0‐211‐195  65 061‐0‐220‐030 
4 061‐0‐190‐060  35 061‐0‐211‐205  66 061‐0‐230‐020 
5 061‐0‐190‐070  36 061‐0‐211‐225  67 061‐0‐230‐040 
6 061‐0‐190‐080  37 061‐0‐211‐235  68 061‐0‐230‐050 
7 061‐0‐190‐090  38 061‐0‐211‐245  69 061‐0‐230‐080 
8 061‐0‐190‐110  39 061‐0‐211‐255  70 061‐0‐230‐145 

9 061‐0‐190‐120  40 061‐0‐212‐015  71 061‐0‐230‐155 
10 061‐0‐190‐130  41 061‐0‐212‐020  72 061‐0‐230‐175 
11 061‐0‐190‐140  42 061‐0‐212‐045  73 061‐0‐230‐180 

12 061‐0‐190‐150  43 061‐0‐212‐050  74 061‐0‐230‐270 
13 061‐0‐190‐160  44 061‐0‐212‐070  75 061‐0‐230‐290 
14 061‐0‐190‐170  45 061‐0‐212‐080  76 061‐0‐230‐335 
15 061‐0‐190‐180  46 061‐0‐212‐090  77 061‐0‐230‐340 

16 061‐0‐190‐195  47 061‐0‐212‐100  78 061‐0‐230‐365 

17 061‐0‐190‐200  48 061‐0‐212‐115  79 061‐0‐230‐395 
18 061‐0‐190‐210  49 061‐0‐212‐120  80 061‐0‐230‐410 
19 061‐0‐190‐220  50 061‐0‐212‐130  81 061‐0‐230‐420 
20 061‐0‐190‐230  51 061‐0‐212‐150  82 061‐0‐230‐430 
21 061‐0‐190‐240  52 061‐0‐212‐160  83 061‐0‐230‐440 
22 061‐0‐190‐255  53 061‐0‐212‐170  84 061‐0‐241‐025 
23 061‐0‐190‐260  54 061‐0‐212‐180  85 061‐0‐241‐050 

24 061‐0‐190‐275  55 061‐0‐212‐190  86 061‐0‐241‐060 
25 061‐0‐190‐285  56 061‐0‐212‐200  87 061‐0‐230‐270 
26 061‐0‐211‐040  57 061‐0‐212‐215  88 061‐0‐230‐290 
27 061‐0‐211‐065  58 061‐0‐212‐220  89 061‐0‐230‐335 
28 061‐0‐211‐105  59 061‐0‐212‐230  90 061‐0‐230‐340 
29 061‐0‐211‐115  60 061‐0‐212‐240  91 061‐0‐230‐365 
30 061‐0‐211‐135  61 061‐0‐212‐250    
31 061‐0‐211‐145  62 061‐0‐212‐280    

EXHIBIT 3 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 36 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 15 of 28  

CASITAS MUTUAL LETTER INITIATING CONSOLIDATION 
ELECTION 

   
EXHIBIT 4 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 37 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 16 of 28  

 

EXHIBIT 4 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 38 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 17 of 28  

   

EXHIBIT 4 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 39 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 18 of 28  

 

EXHIBIT 4 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 40 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 19 of 28  

 
 
 

EXHIBIT 5 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 41 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 20 of 28  

 

   

EXHIBIT 5 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 42 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 21 of 28  

CASITAS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY   
CONSOLIDATION ELECTION RESULTS 

 

 
 
  EXHIBIT 6 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 43 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 22 of 28  

 

RESALE WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  

AND  
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 44 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 23 of 28  

 
 

EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 45 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 24 of 28  

 

EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 46 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 25 of 28  

 EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 47 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 26 of 28  

 

EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 48 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 27 of 28  

 

EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 49 of 82



Casitas Mutual – VRWD  
Consolidation Agreement 

 
Page 28 of 28  

 EXHIBIT 7 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 50 of 82



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 51 of 82



 

DATE: September 20, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2023-359: REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION FOR 
STATE REVOLVING FUND MONIES, 2023 WATER PROJECTS 

 
SUMMARY 

The District is applying for funding from the State Water Resources Control Board – 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) to construct the 2023 Water Projects. A 
Reimbursement Resolution is required as part of the loan application. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board approve the attached 
Reimbursement Resolution for submittal to the State Water Resources Control Board – 
DWSRF. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The District is in the process of applying for funding from the State Water Resources 
Control Board, DWSRF program to fund construction of several components of the 2023 
Water Projects (Attachment 6A). 

All loan applicants are required to submit an adopted Reimbursement Resolution for 
review by the DWSRF tax attorney. The language may not vary from the language 
provided in the template.  

The Resolution Reimbursement states the reasonably expected maximum principal 
amount of the Project Funds is $20,500,000. This amount exceeds the anticipated project 
cost estimate of approximately $17 Million because any change in project costs will 
require a new reimbursement resolution and amendment to the scope of work, causing 
potential months of delay. The District is not obligated to take the full loan amount and is 
free to subtract projects to control costs. 

The Reimbursement Resolution should be a stand-alone resolution. This item is not 
required if the applicant is applying for 100% percent grant/principal forgiveness funding.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

The combined cost of the 2023 Water Projects is approximately $17 Million which 
includes the construction, planning, engineering, and administrative costs. 

The first $10 million will be a zero-interest incentive loan for consolidating with Tico Mutual 
Water Company. Amounts over $10 million will be in the form of a low-interest loan 
(current interest rate is 2.1%). The State Division of Drinking Water is offering an 
additional 20-year, $10 million, zero-interest incentive loan for consolidating with Casitas 
Mutual Water Company.  

 

Agenda Packet - Page 52 of 82



 
Reimbursement Resolution 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Early in 2024 it is anticipated that the Board will decide which projects in the 2023 Water 
Projects will go forward with the financing package and which may be deferred for the 
second $10M incentive loan. The absolute final decision on what projects will be financed 
can be made after bids are received by not awarding contracts to keep the total cost within 
the financing limits.  
 
Attachments: 
 6A – 2023 Water Projects 

6B – Resolution 2023-359 
 6C – SRF Interest Rate History 

Agenda Packet - Page 53 of 82



20
23

 W
at

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t

P
ri

or
ity

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 N

ee
d

T
an

ks
 &

 P
um

ps

W
es

t P
ar

ke
r 

T
an

k 
(2

nd
 T

an
k)

$2
,8

78
,0

00
H

ig
h

T
hi

s 
ta

nk
 is

 n
ee

de
d 

be
fo

re
 m

aj
or

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
on

 th
e 

E
as

t P
ar

ke
r 

T
an

k 
an

d 
fo

r 
op

er
at

io
na

l e
ffi

ci
en

cy

P
A

R
K

E
R

 B
O

O
S

T
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
, 2

00
2,

 P
um

p 
&

 M
ot

or
 R

eb
ui

ld
 w

ith
 V

F
D

's
$1

98
,0

00
Lo

w
T

he
 s

of
t s

ta
rt

s 
on

 th
e 

th
re

e 
bo

os
te

r 
pu

m
ps

 a
re

 a
ge

d 
ou

t a
nd

 n
ee

d 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

to
 V

F
D

's
 

im
pr

ov
es

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l f
le

xi
bi

lit
y.

 

P
A

R
K

E
R

 V
F

D
 to

 Z
on

e 
5

$3
20

,0
00

Lo
w

T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 c

os
t s

av
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t

B
al

dw
in

 B
oo

st
er

 S
ta

tio
n,

 P
um

p 
&

 M
ot

or
 R

eb
ui

ld
$1

,7
34

,7
00

H
ig

h
50

-y
ea

r 
ol

d 
pu

m
p 

pa
ne

ls
 a

re
 b

ec
om

in
g 

un
re

lia
bl

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
in

ef
fic

ie
nt

B
A

LD
W

IN
 T

A
N

K
 N

or
th

,  
19

97
,  

18
4,

00
0 

G
al

, 3
8.

67
' D

ia
 2

4.
1'

 H
 R

ep
la

ce
 in

  2
02

4
$1

,9
07

,0
00

H
ig

h
T

hi
s 

ta
nk

 if
 fa

ili
ng

, l
ea

ks
 in

 th
e 

flo
or

 h
av

e 
be

en
 te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
pa

tc
he

d.
 

B
al

dw
in

 G
en

er
at

or
 S

ou
nd

 W
al

l
$8

8,
00

0
V

er
y 

Lo
w

T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t r
ed

uc
es

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 g
en

er
at

or
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ig
hb

or
s

B
al

dw
in

 S
w

itc
h 

G
ea

r 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

$8
37

,1
00

H
ig

h
50

-y
ea

r 
ol

d 
sw

itc
h 

ge
ar

 is
 u

nr
el

ia
bl

e

B
al

dw
in

 B
oo

st
er

 S
ta

tio
n,

 F
lo

od
 P

ro
of

in
g 

- 
R

ai
se

 C
hl

or
in

e,
 b

ui
ld

 b
ar

rie
r

$1
,3

34
,0

00
H

ig
h

Im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

pr
ot

ec
t o

ur
 c

rit
ic

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

S
ub

-t
ot

al
$9

,2
96

,8
00

W
at

er
 M

ai
ns

T
ic

o 
A

nn
ex

at
io

n 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

&
 L

A
F

C
o

$1
,3

01
,0

00
H

ig
h

C
rit

ic
al

 to
 s

ol
vi

ng
 th

e 
in

ad
eq

ua
ci

es
 o

f t
he

 T
ic

o 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

C
as

ita
s 

T
ur

no
ut

: L
a 

P
az

 O
ja

i T
er

ra
ce

$3
97

,0
00

H
ig

h
T

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

fir
e 

flo
w

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 r

es
id

en
tia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

on
 th

e 
O

ja
i T

er
ra

ce

O
ja

i T
er

ra
ce

 (
V

on
s 

T
ra

ct
) 

O
ld

 P
ip

e 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

$8
82

,0
00

M
od

er
at

e
T

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
fir

e 
flo

w
 to

 th
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 r
es

id
e

nt
ia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

on
 th

e 
O

ja
i T

er
ra

ce

R
e-

P
lu

m
b 

E
nc

in
o 

&
 T

ho
m

as
 P

R
V

 V
au

lts
$4

52
,0

00
M

od
er

at
e

N
ee

d 
to

 u
pg

ra
de

 b
ef

or
e 

w
el

de
d 

pi
pe

s 
fa

il,
 p

er
ha

ps
 5

 y
ea

rs

S
an

ta
 A

na
 W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
- 

re
lo

ca
te

 o
ut

 o
f b

ac
k 

ya
rd

s
$1

,9
62

,0
00

H
ig

h
E

xi
st

in
g 

pi
pe

 in
 b

ac
k 

ya
rd

s 
is

 fa
ili

ng
 a

nd
 n

ee
ds

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t A
S

A
P

N
ov

a 
La

ne
 In

-F
ill

 P
ip

e 
H

W
Y

 3
3/

15
0 

to
 W

el
l #

6
$8

38
,0

00
H

ig
h

T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 in
cr

ea
se

 fi
re

 fl
ow

 o
n 

th
e 

O
ja

i T
er

ra
ce

 b
y 

by
pa

ss
in

g 
3,

00
0 

lf 
of

 6
" 

pi
pe

Lo
m

a 
D

riv
e 

- 
V

ill
an

ov
a 

to
 1

,0
00

' N
or

th
 

$8
38

,0
00

Lo
w

P
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

fir
e 

flo
w

 

S
ub

-t
ot

al
$6

,6
70

,0
00

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

$1
5,

96
6,

80
0

ATTACHMENT 6A

Agenda Packet - Page 54 of 82



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION # 2023 – 359 

REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION FOR THE 2023 WATER PROJECTS BY STATE 
REVOLVING FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Ventura River Water District (the "District") desires to finance the costs of 
constructing and/or reconstructing certain public facilities and improvements relating to its water system, 
including certain treatment facilities, pipelines and other infrastructure (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the District intends to finance the construction and/or reconstruction of the Project or 
portions of the Project with moneys ("Project Funds") provided by the State of California, acting by and 
through the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board); and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Board may fund the Project Funds with proceeds from the sale of 
obligations the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes (the 
"Obligations"), and 

WHEREAS, prior to either the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State Water Board 
of the Project Funds the District desires to incur certain capital expenditures (the "Expenditures") with 
respect to the Project from available moneys of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that those moneys to be advanced on and after the date 
hereof to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period and it is necessary to reimburse 
the District for the Expenditures from the proceeds of the Obligations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby states its intention and reasonably expects to reimburse Expenditures 
paid prior to the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State Water Board of the Project Funds. 

SECTION 2. The reasonably expected maximum principal amount of the Project Funds is $20,500,000. 

SECTION 3. This resolution is being adopted no later than 60 days after the date on which the District will 
expend moneys for the construction portion of the Project costs to be reimbursed with Project Funds. 

SECTION 4. Each District expenditure will be of a type properly chargeable to a capital account under 
general federal income tax principles. 

SECTION 5. To the best of our knowledge, this District is not aware of the previous adoption of official 
intents by the District that have been made as a matter of course for the purpose of reimbursing 
expenditures and for which tax-exempt obligations have not been issued. 

SECTION 6. This resolution is adopted as official intent of the District in order to comply with Treasury 
Regulation §1.150-2 and any other regulations of the Internal Revenue Service relating to the qualification 
for reimbursement of Project costs. 

SECTION 7. All the recitals in this Resolution are true and correct and this District so finds, determines 
and represents. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 55 of 82



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of September 2023. 

CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River Water District at the meeting held on September 
20, 2023, motion by __________________________ and seconded by 
_________________________, motion passed by the following vote:  

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: Attest: 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Ed Lee, President Bert J. Rapp, Secretary/Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 56 of 82



California Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

Interest Rate History 

YEAR RATE* 

2023 2.100% 

2022 1.100% 

2021 1.200% 

2020 1.400% 

2019 1.900% 

2018 1.800% 

2017 1.7000% 

2016 1.6000% 

2015 1.6630% 

2014 2.0850% 

2013 1.7875% 

2012 2.0933% 

2011 2.3035% 

2010 2.5707% 

2009 2.5017% 

2008 2.3086% 

2007 2.2836% 

2006 2.2923% 

2005 2.4517% 

2004 2.6000% 

2003 2.3400% 

2002 2.3900% 

2001 2.5132% 

2000 2.3200% 

*The State Water Resources Control Board’s interest rate for Drinking Water State

Revolving Fund financing is 50 percent of California’s average general obligation

bond rate obtained by the State Treasurer for the previous calendar year. 

ATTACHMENT 6C

Agenda Packet - Page 57 of 82



 

 
DATE: September 20, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G. Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: CalWARN ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT, MUTUAL ASSISTANCE 
AGREEMENT & RESOLUTION 

 
SUMMARY 
The California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) was formed to 
provide mutual aid in the event of a disaster. The Ventura River Water District currently 
has no formal arrangement outlining mutual covenants and agreements for agencies to 
provide or receive mutual assistance to one another in times of emergency. CalWARN is 
a state-wide resource and participation has been recommended by the Ventura County 
Grand Jury to ensure adequate water for wildfire suppression.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board:  

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary paperwork for Ventura 
River Water District to become a signatory to the CalWARN mutual assistance 
agreement. 

 
BACKGROUND 
In the last 20 years, Ventura County has experienced seven (7) major wildfires. The 2017 
Thomas fire and the 2017 Woolsey wildfires highlighted water purveyors’ ability to keep 
sufficient water supply for firefighting due to a loss of power to infrastructure in 
combination with the speed of the wildfires. 
 
Earlier this year, the Ventura County Grand Jury held interviews with 15 Ventura County 
water purveyors including Ventura River Water District, to determine the County’s water 
availability during wildfires. The Grand Jury released its Final Report on Water Availability 
For Wildfires in the County that outlined nine recommendations to ensure an adequate 
supply of water for wildfire suppression in the County. One of the recommendations was 
for the District to enroll with CalWARN to be part of a network of water/wastewater 
agencies that can provide and receive emergency services. 
 
CalWARN was formed to support and promote statewide emergency preparedness, 
disaster response and to organize mutual aid to agencies during emergencies throughout 
the state of California for water/wastewater agencies. CalWARN organizes assistance in 
three forms: personnel, equipment, materials and supplies from outside an area of impact. 
 
An agency can enroll with CalWARN by agreeing to the Articles of Agreement 
(Attachment 7A) and signing a multi-agency Mutual Assistance Agreement (Attachment 
7B). There is no cost to join. The Articles of Agreement set forth the terms by which 

Agenda Packet - Page 58 of 82



 
CalWARN Agreement 
Page 2 of 2 
 

CalWARN signatories can share labor, materials, and equipment with each other in an 
emergency. The Mutual Assistance Agreement formalizes the District’s intent to agree to 
the terms and enroll in the program.  
 
It is important to note that the execution of the Mutual Assistance Agreement does not 
create a duty to respond, and assistance can only be provided when a responding 
member determines that its own needs can be met while rendering assistance. 
Additionally, responding members shall not be held liable for failing to provide assistance. 
If assistance is provided, the terms for payment, indemnity, and other relevant issues are 
all clearly defined.  
 
District Counsel and staff have reviewed the agreement and find it fair and reasonable. 
Staff has confirmed that the District’s liability insurance covers the District and its 
employees when serving in a mutual assistance role under this agreement. 
 
Several agencies in Ventura County have joined CalWARN and a list is provided in the 
packet for reference. If the District were to join, it would immediately have access to a 
large pool of labor, materials, and equipment to aid in recovering from an emergency. 
Additional information is available at www.calwarn.org. 
 
Benefits to the District for Joining CalWARN:  

 Water utilities are able to share resources during an emergency at the discretion 
of each participating agency. 

 A single agreement provides access to statewide water utility resources. 
 Provides a list of emergency contacts and phone numbers.  
 Statewide emergency resource database. 
 Contains indemnification and workers compensation provisions to protect 

participating utilities. 
 Provides for reimbursement of costs between utilities sharing resources. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no cost to the District to adopt the Mutual Assistance Agreement. 
 
Attachments 
 7A – Articles of Agreement 
 7B – Mutual Assistance Agreement 
 7C – List of Agencies in CalWARN Network 

Agenda Packet - Page 59 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  1 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

Articles of Agreement 1 
California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network 2 

WARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement  3 
 4 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by those water and wastewater utilities which have 5 
adopted and signed this agreement to provide mutual assistance in times of emergency in 6 
accordance with the California Emergency Services Act and the California Disaster and Civil 7 
Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement; and to provide reimbursement for equipment, supplies 8 
and personnel made available on an emergency basis.  9 
 10 
All of said water and wastewater utilities being herein referred to collectively as "the parties."  11 
 12 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties agree 13 
to provide mutual assistance to one another in times of emergency as follows:  14 

 15 
 16 

ARTICLE I. 17 
PURPOSE 18 

 19 
Recognizing that emergencies may require assistance in the form of personnel, equipment, and 20 
supplies from outside the area of impact, the signatory utilities hereby establish an Intrastate 21 
Program for Mutual Aid and Assistance.  Through the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program, 22 
Members coordinate response activities and share resources during emergencies.  This 23 
Agreement sets forth the procedures and standards for the administration of the Intrastate 24 
Mutual Aid and Assistance Program and is available to all water and wastewater utilities, public 25 
and private, in the State of California. 26 
 27 
 28 

ARTICLE II. 29 
DEFINITIONS 30 

 31 
A. Authorized Official – An employee or officer of a Member who is authorized to: (1) request 32 

assistance; (2) offer assistance; (3) refuse to offer assistance or (4) withdraw assistance 33 
under this.   34 

 35 
B. Emergency – A natural or human caused event or circumstance causing, or imminently 36 

threatening to cause impact to the operations of a member utility’s system, loss of life, injury 37 
to person or property, human suffering or financial loss, and includes, but is not limited to, 38 
fire, flood, severe weather, earthquake, civil disturbance, riot, explosion, drought, volcanic 39 
activity, spills or releases of oil or hazardous material, contamination, utility or transportation 40 
emergencies, disease, blight, infestation, intentional acts, sabotage, declaration of war, or 41 
other conditions which is, or is likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, 42 
equipment, and facilities of a Member and requires mutual assistance. 43 

 44 
C. Member – Any public or private water or wastewater utility that manifests intent to 45 

participate in the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program by executing this, the California 46 
Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) Agreement.   47 

 48 
D. Associate Member – Any non utility participant, approved by the State Steering Committee, 49 

that provides a support role for the WARN program, for example State Department of Public 50 

Agenda Packet - Page 60 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  2 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

Health, or associations, who are members of the Regional or State Steering Committees 1 
and do not officially sign the WARN agreement. 2 

 3 
E. Confidential Information - Any document shared with any signatory to this Agreement that 4 

is marked confidential, including but not limited to any map, report, notes, papers, opinion, 5 
or e-mail which relates to the system vulnerabilities of a Member or Associate Member. 6 

 7 
F. Non-Responding Member - A Member that does not provide assistance during a Period of 8 

Assistance under the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program. 9 
 10 
G. Requesting Member – A Member who requests assistance under the Mutual Aid and 11 

Assistance Program.   12 
 13 
H. Responding Member – A Member that responds to a request for assistance under the 14 

Mutual Aid and Assistance Program.  15 
 16 
I. Period of Assistance – A specified period of time when a Responding Member assists a 17 

Requesting Member.  The period commences when personnel, equipment, or supplies 18 
depart from Responding Member’s facility and ends when the resources return to their 19 
facility (portal to portal).  All protections identified in the Agreement apply during this period.  20 
The specified Period of Assistance may occur during response to or recovery from an 21 
Emergency. 22 

 23 
J. National Incident Management System (NIMS) - A national, standardized approach to 24 

incident management and response that sets uniform processes and procedures for 25 
emergency response operations. 26 

 27 
K. Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) - A standardized approach to 28 

field command and jurisdictional management and response set forth by State of California 29 
Code of Regulations for multi-agency or multi-jurisdictional response to an emergency. 30 

 31 
 32 

ARTICLE III. 33 
ADMINISTRATION 34 

 35 
The administration of the Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (WARN) will be 36 
through WARN Regional Steering Committees (RSC) and the WARN State Steering Committee 37 
(SSC).  38 
 39 
The WARN RSCs will be established by representatives from the Members in that region.  A 40 
chair and co-chair will be elected and act as administrators for that region.  The chair will 41 
represent the region on the WARN SSC.  Each WARN RSC will sponsor an annual meeting for 42 
Members, maintain a data base of all water and wastewater utilities who have signed this 43 
Agreement, and meet as a committee to address concerns and procedures for requesting 44 
mutual assistance in that region.  The regions will be comprised of one or more of the six Office 45 
of Emergency Services (OES) mutual aid regions.  46 
 47 
The WARN SSC will include the chairs of the regional steering committees, and a 48 
representative from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), California Utilities 49 
Emergency Association (CUEA), Department of Water Resources (DWR), the American Water 50 
Works Association (AWWA) Emergency Planning Committee, California Rural Water 51 

Agenda Packet - Page 61 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  3 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

Association (CRWA) and California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA).  The SSC 1 
will identify a Chair for the purpose of leading the SSC and act as a point of contact for the 2 
WARN SSC.  At a minimum, the WARN SSC will meet annually and issue a list of participating 3 
utilities.  The database will be maintained on the WARN website, managed by a volunteer 4 
Member, as appointed by the SSC.  5 
 6 
 7 

ARTICLE IV. 8 
PROCEDURES 9 

 10 
A. In coordination with the Regional Steering Committees, emergency management and public 11 

health system of the state, the State Steering Committee shall develop operational and 12 
planning procedures for the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program.  These procedures shall 13 
be consistent with the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the 14 
National Incident Management System (NIMS), reviewed at least annually and updated as 15 
needed by the State Steering Committee.  16 

 17 
B. Requests for emergency assistance under this Agreement shall be directed to the 18 

appropriate Authorized Official(s) from the list of Members.  19 
 20 
C. Consistent with SEMS, when more than one County is impacted by a disaster, requests for 21 

mutual assistance under this Agreement may be channeled through the CUEA Utility 22 
Operation Center to ensure maximum effectiveness in allocating resources to the highest 23 
priority needs.  24 
  25 

 26 
ARTICLE V.  27 

REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE  28 
 29 

In general, assistance will be in the form of resources, such as equipment, supplies, and 30 
personnel.  Assistance shall be given only when Responding Member determines that its own 31 
needs can be met while rendering assistance.  The execution of this Agreement shall not create 32 
any duty to respond on the part of any party hereto.  A potential Responding Member shall not 33 
be held liable for failing to provide assistance.  A potential Responding Member has the 34 
absolute discretion to decline to provide any requested assistance.   35 
 36 
A. Member Responsibility - Members shall identify an Authorized Official and alternates; 37 

provide contact information including 24-hour access; and maintain resource information 38 
made available by the utility for mutual aid and assistance response, as allowed by utility 39 
policy. Such information shall be updated annually or as changes occur (whichever is 40 
sooner), provided to the State Steering Committee, and uploaded into the statewide 41 
database.  42 

 43 
B. Member Request - In the event of an Emergency, a Member’s Authorized Official may 44 

request mutual aid and assistance from a participating Member.  Requests for assistance 45 
can be made orally or in writing.  When made orally, the request for personnel, equipment, 46 
and supplies shall also be prepared in writing and submitted to the participating Member as 47 
soon as practicable.  Requests for assistance shall be directed to the Authorized Official of 48 
the participating Member.  Specific protocols for requesting aid shall be provided in the 49 
procedures developed under Article IV. 50 

 51 

Agenda Packet - Page 62 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  4 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

C. Response to a Request for Assistance – Members are not obligated to respond to a 1 
request. After a Member receives a request for assistance, the Authorized Official evaluates 2 
whether or not to respond, whether resources are available to respond, or if other 3 
circumstances would hinder response.  Following the evaluation, the Authorized 4 
Representative shall inform, as soon as possible, the Requesting Member whether it will 5 
respond.  If the Member is willing and able to provide assistance, the Member shall inform 6 
the Requesting Member about the type of available resources and the approximate arrival 7 
time of such assistance. 8 

 9 
D. Discretion of Responding Member’s Authorized Official – Execution of this Agreement 10 

does not create any duty to respond to a request for assistance.  When a Member receives 11 
a request for assistance, the Authorized Official shall have sole and absolute discretion as to 12 
whether or not to respond, or the availability of resources to be used in such response.  An 13 
Authorized Member’s decisions on the availability of resources shall be final.  14 

 15 
 16 

ARTICLE VI.  17 
RESPONSE COORDINATION 18 

 19 
When providing assistance under this Agreement, the Requesting Member and Responding 20 
Member shall be organized and shall function under the Standard Emergency Management 21 
System and National Incident Management System protocols and procedures. 22 
 23 
A. Personnel – Responding Member retains right to identify the employees who are willing 24 

to participate and the resources that are available. 25 
 26 
B. Control – While employees so provided may be under the supervision of the 27 

Responding Member, the Responding Member’s employees come under the direction 28 
and control of the Requesting Member, consistent with the NIMS Incident Command 29 
System to address the needs identified by the Requesting Member. The Requesting 30 
Member’s Authorized Official shall coordinate response activities with the designated 31 
supervisor(s) of the Responding Member(s).     Whenever practical, Responding 32 
Member personnel must be self sufficient for up to 72 hours. The Responding Member’s 33 
designated supervisor(s) must keep accurate records of work performed by personnel 34 
during the specified Period of Assistance.   35 

 36 
C. Food and Shelter – When possible, the Requesting Member shall supply reasonable food 37 

and shelter for Responding Member personnel.  If the Requesting Member is unable to 38 
provide food and shelter for Responding Member personnel, the Responding Member’s 39 
designated supervisor is authorized to secure the resources necessary to meet the needs of 40 
its personnel.  Except as provided below, the cost for such resources must not exceed the 41 
State per diem rates for that area.  To the extent Food and Shelter costs exceed the State 42 
per diem rates for the area, the Responding Member must demonstrate that the additional 43 
costs were reasonable and necessary under the circumstances.  Unless otherwise agreed 44 
to in writing, the Requesting Member remains responsible for reimbursing the Responding 45 
Member for all reasonable and necessary costs associated with providing food and shelter, 46 
if such resources are not provided. 47 

 48 
D. Communication – The Requesting Member shall provide Responding Member personnel 49 

with radio equipment as available, or radio frequency information to program existing radio, 50 
in order to facilitate communications with local responders and utility personnel. 51 

Agenda Packet - Page 63 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  5 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

 1 
E. Status - Unless otherwise provided by law, the Responding Member’s officers and 2 

employees retain the same privileges, immunities, rights, duties and benefits as provided in 3 
their respective jurisdictions.  4 

 5 
F. Licenses and Permits – To the extent permitted by law, Responding Member personnel 6 

who hold licenses, certificates, or permits evidencing professional, mechanical, or other 7 
skills shall be allowed to carry out activities and tasks relevant and related to their respective 8 
credentials during the specified Period of Assistance.  9 

 10 
G. Right to Withdraw Resources - The Responding Member’s Authorized Official retains the 11 

right to withdraw some or all of its resources at any time for any reason in the Responding 12 
Member’s sole and absolute discretion.  Notice of intention to withdraw must be 13 
communicated to the Requesting Member’s Authorized Official as soon as soon as is 14 
practicable under the circumstances.   15 

 16 
 17 

ARTICLE VII. 18 
COST REIMBURSEMENT 19 

 20 
Unless otherwise mutually agreed in whole or in part by both parties, the Requesting Member 21 
shall reimburse the Responding Member for each of the following categories of costs incurred 22 
while providing aid and assistance during the specified Period of Assistance. 23 
 24 
A. Personnel – Responding Member will make such employees as are willing to 25 

participate available to Requesting Member at Requesting Member’s expense equal to 26 
Responding Member’s  full cost, i.e., equal to the employee's applicable salary or hourly 27 
wage plus fringe benefits and overhead, and consistent with Responding Member’s 28 
collective bargaining agreements or other conditions of employment. All costs incurred 29 
for work performed during the specified Period of Assistance will be included. The 30 
Requesting Member shall be responsible for all direct and indirect labor costs. 31 

 32 
B. Equipment – Use of equipment, such as construction equipment, vehicles, tools, pumps 33 

and generators, shall be at Responding Member's current equipment rate and subject to the 34 
following conditions: The Requesting Member shall reimburse the Responding Member for 35 
the use of equipment during the specified Period of Assistance, including, but not limited to, 36 
reasonable rental rates, all fuel, lubrication, maintenance, transportation, and 37 
loading/unloading of loaned equipment.  All equipment shall be returned to the Responding 38 
Member as soon as is practicable and reasonable under the circumstances.   39 

(a) At the option of Responding Member, equipment may be provided with an 40 
operator.  41 

(b) Equipment shall be returned to Responding Member within 24 hours after receipt 42 
of an oral or written request for return.  43 

(c) Requesting Member shall, at its own expense, supply all fuel, lubrication and 44 
maintenance for furnished equipment.  45 

(d) Responding Member’s cost related to the transportation, handling and 46 
loading/unloading of equipment shall be chargeable to Requesting Member.  47 

(e) In the event equipment is damaged while being dispatched to Requesting Member, 48 
or while in the custody and use of Requesting Member, Requesting Member shall 49 
reimburse Responding Member for the reasonable cost of repairing said damaged 50 
equipment.  If the equipment cannot be repaired, then Requesting Member shall 51 

Agenda Packet - Page 64 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  6 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

reimburse Responding Member for the cost of replacing such equipment with 1 
equipment that is of at least equal capability as determined by the Responding 2 
Member.  If Responding Member must lease a piece of equipment while Requesting 3 
Member equipment is being repaired or replaced, Requesting Member shall 4 
reimburse Responding Member for such lease costs. 5 

 6 
C. Materials and Supplies – Requesting Member shall reimburse Responding Member in 7 

kind or at actual replacement cost, plus handling charges, for use of expendable or non-8 
returnable supplies.  Other supplies and reusable items that are returned to Responding 9 
Member in a clean, damage-free condition shall not be charged to the Requesting 10 
Member and no rental fee will be charged; otherwise, they shall be treated as 11 
expendable supplies.  Supplies that are returned to the Responding Member with 12 
damage must be treated as expendable supplies for purposes of cost reimbursement.  13 

 14 
D. Payment Period – The Responding Member shall provide an itemized bill to the Requesting 15 

Member for all expenses incurred by the Responding Member while providing assistance 16 
under this Agreement.  The Requesting Member shall send the itemized bill not later than 17 
(90) ninety dates following the end of the Period of Assistance.  The Responding Member 18 
may request additional periods of time within which to submit the itemized bill, and 19 
Requesting Member shall not unreasonably withhold consent to such request.  The 20 
Requesting Member agrees to reimburse the Responding Member within 60 days from 21 
receipt of an invoice for assistance provided under this Agreement.  The Requesting 22 
Member may request additional periods of time within which to pay the itemized bill, and 23 
Responding Member shall not unreasonably withhold consent to such request, provided, 24 
however, that all payment shall occur not later than one-year after the date a final itemized 25 
bill is submitted to the Requesting Member.  26 

 27 
E. Records - Each Responding Member and its duly authorized representatives shall have 28 

access to a Requesting Member’s books, documents, notes, reports, papers and records 29 
which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the accuracy of 30 
a cost bill or making a financial, maintenance or regulatory audit.  Each Requesting Member 31 
and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to a Responding Member’s books, 32 
documents, notes, reports, papers and records which are directly pertinent to this 33 
Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the accuracy of a cost bill or making a financial, 34 
maintenance or regulatory audit.  Such records shall be maintained for at least three (3) 35 
years or longer where required by law and as needed for federal reimbursement practices. 36 

 37 
 38 

ARTICLE VIII.  39 
ARBITRATION 40 

 41 
If any controversy or claim arises out of, or relates to, the Agreement, including, but not limited 42 
to an alleged breach of the Agreement, the disputing Members shall first attempt to resolve the 43 
dispute by negotiation, followed by mediation and finally shall be settled by arbitration in 44 
accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association.  Judgment on the award 45 
rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. 46 
 47 
 48 

Agenda Packet - Page 65 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  7 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

ARTICLE IX.  1 
REQUESTING MEMBER’S DUTY TO INDEMNIFY 2 

 3 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, and subject to Article X, Requesting Member 4 
shall assume the defense of, fully indemnify and hold harmless Responding Member, its 5 
Directors, Council Members, Supervisors, officers and employees, from all claims, loss, 6 
damage, injury and liability of every kind, nature and description, directly or indirectly arising 7 
from the Requesting Member’s work hereunder, including, but not limited to, negligent or 8 
wrongful use of equipment, supplies or personnel provided to Requesting Member or faulty 9 
workmanship or other negligent acts, errors or omissions by Responding Member, or by 10 
personnel provided to Requesting Member from the time assistance is requested and 11 
rendered until the assistance is returned to Responding Member’s control, portal to portal.  12 
 13 
 14 

ARTICLE X.  15 
SIGNATORY INDEMNIFICATION 16 

 17 
In the event of a liability, claim, demand, action or proceeding, of whatever kind or nature 18 
arising out of the rendering of assistance through this Agreement, the parties involved in 19 
rendering or receiving assistance agree to indemnify and hold harmless all Members whose 20 
only involvement is the execution and approval of this Agreement, in the transaction or 21 
occurrence which is the subject of such claim, action, demand or other proceeding.  Such 22 
indemnification shall include indemnity for all claims, demands, liability, damages and costs, 23 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs of defense, for injury, property damage 24 
and workers compensation.  25 
 26 
 27 

ARTICLE XI.  28 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION CLAIMS 29 

 30 
The Responding Member is responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and 31 
administering worker’s compensation for its employees.   The Requesting Member is 32 
responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and administering worker’s 33 
compensation for its employees.   34 
 35 
 36 

ARTICLE XII.  37 
NOTICE 38 

 39 
Each party hereto shall give to the others prompt and timely written notice of any claim 40 
made or any suit instituted coming to its knowledge, which in any way, directly or indirectly, 41 
contingently or otherwise, affects or might affect them, and each Member shall have the 42 
right to participate in the defense of the same, as it considers necessary to protect its own 43 
interests.  44 
 45 
 46 

Agenda Packet - Page 66 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  8 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

ARTICLE XIII.  1 
INSURANCE 2 

 3 
Members shall maintain an insurance policy or maintain a self insurance program that covers 4 
activities that it may undertake by virtue of membership in the Mutual Aid and Assistance 5 
Program.     6 
 7 
 8 

ARTICLE XIV. 9 
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 10 

 11 
To the extent allowed by law, any Member or Associate Member shall maintain in the strictest 12 
confidence and shall take all reasonable steps necessary to prevent the disclosure of any 13 
Confidential Information provided to it by another Member pursuant to this Agreement.  If any 14 
Member, Associate Member, or third party requests or demands, by subpoena or otherwise, 15 
that a Member or Associate Member disclose any Confidential Information provided to it under 16 
this Agreement, the Member or Associate Member shall immediately notify the owner of the 17 
Confidential Information and shall take all reasonable steps necessary to prevent the disclosure 18 
of any Confidential Information by asserting all applicable rights and privileges with respect to 19 
such information and shall cooperate fully in any judicial or administrative proceeding relating 20 
thereto.   21 

 22 
 23 

ARTICLE XV.  24 
EFFECTIVE DATE 25 

 26 
This Agreement shall take effect for a new party immediately upon its execution by said 27 
party. 28 
 29 
 30 

ARTICLE XVI.  31 
WITHDRAWAL 32 

 33 
Any party may terminate its participation in this Agreement by written notice to the Chair of the 34 
appropriate RSC and to the SSC Chair. Withdrawal takes effect 60 days after the appropriate 35 
officials receive notice.  Withdrawal from this Agreement shall in no way affect a Requesting 36 
Member’s duty to reimburse a Responding Member for cost incurred during a Period of 37 
Assistance, which duty shall survive such withdrawal. 38 
 39 
 40 

ARTICLE XVII.  41 
MODIFICATION 42 

 43 
No provision of this Agreement may be modified, altered or rescinded by individual parties to the 44 
Agreement.  Modifications to this Agreement require a simple majority vote of Members within 45 
each region and unanimous agreement among the regions.  The State Steering Committee will 46 
notify all parties of modifications to this Agreement in writing and those modifications shall be 47 
effective upon 60 days written notice to the parties.  48 

 49 

Agenda Packet - Page 67 of 82



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  9 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

 1 
ARTICLE XVIII.  2 
SEVERABILITY 3 

 4 
If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 5 
illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be 6 
affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 7 
Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.   8 
 9 
 10 

ARTICLE XIX.  11 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS 12 

 13 
To the extent that prior agreements among signatories to this Agreement for mutual assistance 14 
are inconsistent with this Agreement, such agreements are hereby superseded.  This 15 
Agreement supersedes the 1996 Omnibus Mutual Aid Agreement, the WARN 1997 Omnibus 16 
Mutual Aid Agreement, and the WARN 2001 Omnibus Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement.  17 
 18 
 19 

ARTICLE XX. 20 
PROHIBITION ON THIRD PARTIES AND ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS/DUTIES 21 

 22 
This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Members and no other person or entity has rights 23 
under this Agreement as a third party beneficiary.  Assignment of benefits or delegation of 24 
duties created by this Agreement to third parties that are not Members is prohibited and without 25 
effect. 26 

 27 
 28 

ARTICLE XXI.  29 
TORT CLAIMS 30 

 31 
This Agreement in no way abrogates or waives any immunity or defense available under 32 
California law. 33 
 34 
 35 

ARTICLE XXII.  36 
INTRASTATE AND INTERSTATE MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 37 

 38 
To the extent practicable, Members retain the right to participate in mutual aid and assistance 39 
activities conducted under the State of California Intrastate WARN Mutual Aid and Assistance 40 
Program and the Interstate Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) and similar 41 
programs.   42 
 43 
 44 
 45 

Agenda Packet - Page 68 of 82



California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) 
 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement 

WHEREAS, the California Office of Emergency Services (OES), the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR), the Department of Public Health (DPH) and the California Utilities Emergency Association 
(CUEA) have expressed a mutual interest in the establishment of a plan to facilitate and encourage water 
agency mutual assistance agreements between water agencies; and  

WHEREAS, the California Water Agency Response Network (CalWARN) was originally created to provide 
a forum for the development of mutual assistance agreements between water agencies in the OES 
Coastal Region of California; and later expanded to all water and wastewater agencies in the State of 
California, and  

WHEREAS, the CALIFORNIA WATER/WASTEWATER AGENCY RESPONSE NETWORK (CalWARN) 
2007 OMNIBUS MUTUAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT is a continuation of the WARN 1996 OMNIBUS 
MUTUAL AID and 2001 OMNIBUS MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT and sets forth the mutual covenants and 
agreements for water and wastewater agencies to provide mutual assistance to one another in times of 
emergency; and  

WHEREAS, State OES regulates the SEMS program, and this agreement is consistent with SEMS, and 
that it is necessary to have a mutual assistance agreement in place to support requests to FEMA for 
costs of using assistance during an emergency, and  

WHEREAS, the water or wastewater agency hereto has determined that it would be in its best interests to 
enter into an agreement that implements that plan and sets forth procedures and the responsibilities of 
the agency whenever emergency personnel, equipment and facility assistance are provided from one 
agency to the other; and  

WHEREAS, no water or wastewater agency should be in a position of unreasonably using its own 
resources, facilities, or services providing such mutual assistance; and  

WHEREAS, it is the intent of WARN to revise this agreement as necessary and to annually publish a list of 
all water and wastewater agencies participating in this agreement, as posted on www.calwarn.org; and  

WHEREAS, such an agreement is in accord with the California Emergency Services Act set forth in Title 2, 
Division 1, Chapter 7 (Section 8550 et seq.) of the Government Code and specifically with Articles 14 
and 17 (Section 8630 et seq.) of the Act.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the conditions and covenants contained therein, the 

_____________________________________________________________ 
(Utility) 

agrees to abide by the current CalWARN Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement and the CalWARN 
ACS Chapter Governance Document. 

(signature) 

Date: 

Name: (printed) 

Title: 

Please return a signed copy of this page to: CWC-ACS@YourACS.org 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

September 20, 2023
Bert Rapp
General Manager, Ventura River Water District

Agenda Packet - Page 69 of 82



CalWARN Member Agencies

Agency City Website

Cal American Water Company -Ventura Newbury Park, CA https://amwater.com/caaw/

Calleguas Municipal Water Company Thousand Oaks, CA http://www.calleguas.com/

Camrosa Water District Camarillo, CA https://www.camrosa.com/

Casitas Municipal Water District Oak View, CA https://www.casitaswater.org/

Golden State Water Company- Simi Valley CSA Simi Valley, CA http://www.ncsd.ca.gov

Ojai Valley Sanitary District Ojai, CA http://www.ojaisan.org/

Simi Valley City of Waterworks Division, Ventura 
County Waterworks #8 Simi Valley, CA http://www.ncsd.ca.gov

Thousand Oaks, City Of Thousand Oaks, CA https://www.toaks.org/departments/public-works

Triunfo Sanitation District Ventura, CA http://www.triunfosanitation.com/

United Water Consv Dist Oxnard, CA https://www.unitedwater.org/

Ventura County Water and Sanitation Department Moorpark, CA https://www.vcpublicworks.org/wsd/

Ventura County Waterworks District Moorpark, CA
https://www.moorparkca.gov/BusinessDirectoryII.
aspx?BID=26

Ventura Regional Sanitation District Santa Paula, CA http://www.vrsd.com/

ATTACHMENT 7C

Agenda Packet - Page 70 of 82



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 71 of 82



 

 

DATE:  September 20, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER AND DISTRICT STATUS 

 

WELLS & PRODUCTION 

The static aquifer level at Well #2 on September 1, 2023, was at elevation 544.2 feet; and 
decreased 2.5 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is 28.9 feet above the 35-year average 
for September 1st.  

Well #1 is pumping 1,076 gpm, down 13 gpm from last month. Well #7 is pumping 831 gpm, down 
31 gpm from last month, Wells #2, #3, #4 and #6 were off-line in August. 

USAGE 

Sales dollars billed on August 31, 2023, amounted to $300,892, ($23,352) over budget for August. 
Last year we billed $268,237 during the same period. Water sold in August 2023 amounted to 
37,439 HCF, a decrease of 40.1% below the 62,509 HCF sold in August 2013.  

Charts are enclosed to depict the ground water status and water usage. On September 1, 2023, 
Lake Casitas level was at 72.6% of full capacity at elevation 540.33, with storage of 172,823 AF. 
The lake decreased 0.6%, 0.67 feet and 1,480 AF since last month.  

ET adjustment:  The ET was increased by 3% for the August 31st water bill because ET was above 
average for the period July 15th to August 15th due to the warmer weather. This increases the 
irrigation portion of the customer’s monthly water budget.  

ACTIVITIES 

Operations & Maintenance 
SCADA - The system continues to operate manually since July 17th because something in the 
system is likely faulting causing communication failures. After several modifications, the problem 
continues. Staff continues to troubleshoot alongside Mitec and Northern Digital. 
 
On September 11, 2023, both Mitec and Northern Digital were onsite to evaluate other potential 
causes. Findings remain inconclusive, however, both entities were able to eliminate some of the 
causes and continue evaluating. 
 
Wells 2 & 3 rehabilitation delayed until April 2024. The District has been notified that the Variable 
Frequency Drives (VRD’s) for Wells 2 & 3 will not be provided by the manufacturer until April 
2024.  We have checked on purchasing other brands, but their delivery schedules are similar. 
The contract for this work was signed with Hanson Welldo in January 2022.  The old well pumps 
have been removed, lower depth with poor quality water in the wells has been sealed off with 
gravel and a clay cap.  New pumps have been installed. The final elements to reactivate the wells 
are the electrical control cabinets with the VFD’s. 

Agenda Packet - Page 72 of 82



Water & District Update 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Grand Jury Recommendations - Update   
The District enrolled in the Federal Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency’s (CISA)  

 Wireless Priority Service (WPS) to provide cell phone priority in emergencies, and  
 Government Emergency Telecommunications System (GETS) to provide landline phone 

priority in emergencies, and  
 Telecommunication Service Priority (TSP) to request priority restoration of approved voice 

and data circuits critical to operations.  
The District will be joining CalWARN, a network of water and wastewater agencies that can 
provide emergency resources after adoption of the required resolution on September 20, 2023. 
 
The District met with Meiners Oaks Water District in September to begin discussions on 
communication protocols for when normal operations are disrupted. 
 
Regulatory 
LAFCo has set the annexation hearing for Tico and 1000 Burnham Road for November 15, 2023. 
 
Staff Acknowledgements 
Emily Arnbrister celebrated 3 years with the District and continues to safeguard the District’s 
finances. 
 
Nichole Suggs celebrated 1-year with the District and has demonstrated exceptional 
professionalism in the customer service arena. 
 
Alma Quezada has completed 1-year as Assistant General Manager and is demonstrating her 
many talents for expediting District functions.   
 
Customer Log 
 
Three customer complaints were logged in August.

 
 
 
 
 
 

CUSTOMER COMPLAINT LOG

V
R

W
D

 

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
ID

E

08/08/23 2019 Woodland Dr x x A.M.S. would not turn Replaced A.M.S and turned off water for plumber

08/02/23 11111 Alto Dr x x Service line leak Replaced 4 feet of corroded copper service line

08/17/23 166 Feliz Dr x
Black sediment in 
water.

Customer stated they had black sediment in their water at 
one faucet. A visual sample from outside of the house was 
collected and no sediment was found. Customer stated 
they had no water softener; only older pipes in the house. 
Old pipes are likely the cause.

 OTHER / 
DESCRIPTION

FINDINGS COMMENTS

P
R

E
S

S
U

R
E

 H
IG

H
/L

O
W

O
U

T
A

G
E

IL
L

N
E

S
S

Leak

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 o
r 

M
E

T
E

R

M
A

IN
 -

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

W
O

R
M

S
 /

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

M
S

DATE LOCATION / ADDRESS

T
A

S
T

E
 &

 O
D

O
R

C
O

L
O

R

T
U

R
B

ID
IT

Y

Agenda Packet - Page 73 of 82



50.0

25.9

31.4

20.7

30.1

53.0

13.3
12.4

29.3

15.4
17.1

6.9

3.6

27.1

31.9

37.8

14.2

46.6

28.2

19.0

45.5

9.8

22.2

29.5

13.3

17.7

26.8

34.4

23.8

8.8

25.8

16.1

32.0

17.5

13.6

4.2

13.8

5.0

16.8

23.0

14.9

31.3

11.1

18.4
16.9

47.7

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

1
97

8
1

97
9

1
98

0
1

98
1

1
98

2
1

98
3

1
98

4
1

98
5

1
98

6
1

98
7

1
98

8
1

98
9

1
99

0
1

99
1

1
99

2
1

99
3

1
99

4
1

99
5

1
99

6
1

99
7

1
99

8
1

99
9

2
00

0
2

00
1

2
00

2
2

00
3

2
00

4
2

00
5

2
00

6
2

00
7

2
00

8
2

00
9

2
01

0
2

01
1

2
01

2
2

01
3

2
01

4
2

01
5

2
01

6
2

01
7

2
01

8
2

01
9

2
02

0
2

02
1

2
02

2
2

02
3

In
ch

es
 o

f 
R

ai
n

Rain Year

Historic Annual Rainfall - At VRWD Office

Average = 22.35" 

September 1, 2023

Agenda Packet - Page 74 of 82



28.9

11.6

8.6 9.1
10.3

12.0

28.0

11.2

27.3

17.0

6.1

16.9

47.5

544.0

514.8

553.0

525.5

535.9

530.1

494.6

515.5

479.5

507.9

481.7

503.8

472.2

491.8

469.1

545

491.1

533.8

522

533.3

517.4

526.4

491.5

530.0

498.7

555.4

544.9

72 %

86 %

81 %

60%

35.1%

43.8%

30.4%

45.0%

41.2%

44.9%

32.3%

35.0%

29.8%

73.0%

72.6%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

570

Ju
n
e‐
1
0

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
0

Ju
n
e‐
1
1

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
1

Ju
n
e‐
1
2

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
2

Ju
n
e‐
1
3

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
3

Ju
n
e‐
1
4

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
4

Ju
n
e‐
1
5

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
5

Ju
n
e‐
1
6

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
6

Ju
n
e‐
1
7

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
7

Ju
n
e‐
1
8

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
8

Ju
n
e‐
1
9

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
9

Ju
n
e‐
2
0

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
0

Ju
n
e‐
2
1

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
1

Ju
n
e‐
2
2

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
2

Ju
n
e‐
2
3

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
3

Ju
n
e‐
2
4

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
4

R
ai
n
 ‐
In
ch
e
s

El
ev
at
io
n
 A
b
o
ve
 S
ea

 L
ev
el

Chart 9VENTURA RIVER UPPER BASIN & LAKE CASITAS LEVELS 
September 1, 2023                                          

hhihhihhihhi

Lake Casitas Level

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

Probable Limit of Aquifer

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

hhi

Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Level

Aquifer Full

74.1 % on 6/21/23

3/22/2023

Agenda Packet - Page 75 of 82



0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

U
n
it
s 
o
f 
W
at
e
r,
 H
C
F

VRWD TOTAL SYSTEM DEMANDS 

2013 2020 2021 2022 2023

2023

Chart 3

Agenda Packet - Page 76 of 82



555.4

547.7 ft
544.2

-119

-99

-79

-59

-39

-19

445

465

485

505

525

545

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

S
e

p
t

O
c

t

N
o

v

D
ec

E
le

va
tio

n 
[f

ee
t]

, a
m

sl
WATER LEVEL HYDROGRAPH

AQUIFER LEVEL FROM REFERENCE VRWD WELL # 2, FIRST DAY OF THE MONTH

2016 2020 2021 2022 2023 30 Yr AVG

Well #2 & 4 Shut Off Elev. 497

Sounding Pipe Elevation = 565.11

Well #3 Shut Off Elev 487

2020

35‐Yr Average

Aquifer Full at 551.7 feet

Start Nitrate Blending Elev 472

2016

Bottom of Aquifer Elev 450

2021

2022

CHART 2

August 1, 2023

Sept. 1, 2023

Agenda Packet - Page 77 of 82



‐45.2%

‐40.6% ‐41.5% ‐40.6%

‐48.8%

‐31.8%

‐27.7%

‐40.0%

‐47.6%

‐63.1%

‐56.9% ‐56.1%

‐52.5%

‐40.1%

‐70.0%

‐65.0%

‐60.0%

‐55.0%

‐50.0%

‐45.0%

‐40.0%

‐35.0%

‐30.0%

‐25.0%

‐20.0%

‐15.0%

‐10.0%

‐5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

Ju
l-

22

A
u

g
-2

2

S
ep

-2
2

O
ct

-2
2

N
o

v-
22

D
ec

-2
2

Ja
n

-2
3

F
e

b
-2

3

M
a

r-
23

A
p

r-
23

M
ay

-2
3

Ju
n

-2
3

Ju
l-

23

A
u

g
-2

3

Ventura River WD Water Usage 
Compared to 2013

Target Reduction ‐20%

Rolling Average 
of Reduction from 2013

Chart 7

Agenda Packet - Page 78 of 82



$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Water Revenues
FY 2023/2024

Budgeted Water Revenue Year to date Actual Water Revenue Year to date

Revenue is at 2% under Budget for the Year.

Chart 8A

Agenda Packet - Page 79 of 82



0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

U
n
it
s 
o
f 
W
at
er
 U
se
d

Water Usage
FY 2023/2024

Budgeted Water Usage Actual Water Usage

Usage is 6% under 
Budget for the Year.

Chart 8B

Agenda Packet - Page 80 of 82



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 81 of 82



DATE: September 20, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager 

SUBJECT: FILLING GENERAL MANAGER POSITION 

SUMMARY 
The present General Manager, Bert Rapp, is set to retire on December 31, 2023.  
In September 2022 the District hired an Assistant General Manager, Alma Quezada, to 
help with the additional workload associated with the consolidation with Tico Mutual 
Water Company and to train to potentially be promoted to General Manager.  At this 
time the Board may wish to decide if they want to begin a recruiting process for 
the General Manager position.  

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
Provide direction to staff regarding on how they would like to proceed with filing the 
General Manager position. 

BACKGROUND 
The options for the Board are: 

1. Begin a recruiting process for the General Manager position with one or both of 
the following options:

a. Use a recruiting firm.
b. Run a District recruiting program using advertisements through professional 

organizations, recruiting websites and local newspapers.
2. Conduct an interview with the Assistant General Manager then decide to begin a 

recruiting process or begin negotiations with the Assistant General Manager 
to become the General Manager.

According to our Legal Counsel Stuart Nielsen there is no legal requirement that the 
Board do a recruitment or interview other candidates, and they have the freedom to 
promote/appoint Alma should they wish to do so or to conduct a recruitment. 
Timing:  If a recruitment process is initiated in late September a candidate could 
reasonably fill the position in mid-December.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost of a recruiting firm is about $40,000.  The District can also conduct it’s own 
advertising through professional organizations, recruiting websites and local 
newspapers at a cost of about $5,000.     

Agenda Packet - Page 82 of 82


	Agenda 2023-9-20 September
	Item 2 - Oath of Office
	Item 2a - OATH OF OFFICE
	Item 4a - 2023-08-16 Minutes
	Item 4b- Payments for August
	August Online_Payment_Spreadsheet
	AUG CHECK REGISTER

	Item 4c- Financials for May & June
	MAY IS
	MAY IS Budget
	MAY BS
	MAY CIP
	JUNE IS
	JUNE IS Budget
	JUNE BS
	JUNE CIP

	Item 5- Approve Consolidation Agreement
	Item 5a - Casitas Map
	Item 5b - Consolidation Agmt Casitas Mutual VRWD_Final
	Item 6 - Reimbursement Resolution
	Item 6a - 2023 Water Projects
	Item 6b - Resolution 2023-359 - SRF Reimbursement Resolution
	Item 6c - Interest Rate History
	Item 7 - CalWARN Mutual Assistance Agreement
	Item 7a - CalWARN Articles of Agreement 2007 0930
	Item 7b - CalWARN Mutual Assistance Agreement_Signatory Page - VRWD
	Item 7c - CalWARN Member Agencies
	Item 9 - Water & District Status
	Item 9a - All Charts
	Item 10 - General Manager Position



